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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To tlic Honorable City Council
City of Industry, California

We have audited the accompafiying financial statemments of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major find, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Industry, California (City), as of and for the year ended Iune 30, 2011,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit im accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
fierica and the standaids; ipplicable to financial audits coiitdined in Governmert Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller Géneral of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial stateménts: An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant ¢stimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activitiés, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component wiit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City,
as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash Hows
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the
United States of America.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Stamdards, we have also issued our report dated Fanuary 31,
2011 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tesfs of its
comipliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and cther-
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial repotting aid compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an. integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's
discussion and analysis, the schedules of funding progress of the retirement and other post-employment
benefit plans, and biidgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 14 and pages 76 through 85 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accoumnting Standards Board, whe considers
it to be an essential part of finangial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context, We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, Which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and. comparing the information for consisteney -with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements, We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information becduse
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurarnce.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statéments and the schedules of long-term debt are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combinirig and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedules of long-term debt are the responsibility of
management and wer¢ derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applicd in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accouiiting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with aiditing staidards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opigion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole,

2&&&4@%’ T
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Industry and its component units {the “City") provide this Management's
Discussion and Analysis that gives an overview of the City’s activities for the year ended
June 30, 2011. Please read this information in conjunction with the City’s basic financial
statements.

Financial Highlights

As management of the City, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative and anaiysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011.

The assets of the City's governmental activities exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2011
by $565.5 million {net assets). Of this amount, $44 million is resiricted for capital projects
and $196 million is restricted for debt service activities. Net assets increased by $34
million, which represents an overall decrease in the City's long term and current debt
obligations.

The assets of the City's business-type activities exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2011
by $39 million (net assets). Of this amount, $35 million is invested in capital assets. Net
assets decreased by $1.4 million as a result of expenditures exceeding revenues and
transfers.

General Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of four parts — management’s discussion and analysis, the
pasic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an other
supplementary section that presents combining financial statements and debt
amortization schedules. The basic financial statements comprise of 3 parts - 1) the
government-wide financial statements, 2) the fund financial statements and 3) the notes
to the financial statements. The government-wide financial statements, the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
City as a whole and present a long-term view of the City’s finances. For governmental
activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as
well as what remains for future spending. Fund financtal statements also report the
City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing
information about the City's most significant funds.

Government-wide statements
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the
City as a whole and about its activities. These statements include ail assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used
by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes thereto. Net assets, the
difference between assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the City’s financial
health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets are an
indicator of whether the financial health is improving or deteriorating.

-3-




CITY OF INDUSTRY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

However, it is important to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in the
City's property tax base or condition of the City's roads to accurately assess the overall
health of the City. :

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, present information about
the following:

Governmental activities - All of the City's basic services are considered to be
governmental activities, including general government, community development, public
safety, public works, and community services. Property taxes, transient occupancy
taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees finance most of these activities.

Proprietary activities/Business type activities - The City charges a fee to customers
to cover all or most of the cost of the services provided. The Industry Public Utilities
Commission (the “IPUC”), the Industry Hills Expo Center, and the Industry Property and
Housing Authority (the “Housing Authority”) are reported in this category.

Component units - The City's governmental activities include the blending of five
separate legal entities: The Industry Urban-Development Agency (the “IUDA”), the Civic-
Recreational-Industrial Authority (the ‘CRIA"), the IPUC, the City of Industry Public
Facilities Authority (the "PFA”") and the Housing Authority. Although legally separate,
these “component units’ are important because the City is financially accountable for it.
In addition, the City presents one discretely presented component unit, the Industry
Convalescent Hospital dba El Encanto Healthcare and Habilitation Center.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant
funds — not the Cily as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law
and by bond covenants. However, management establishes many other funds that aid
in the administration of resources for particular purposes or meet legal responsibilities
associated with the usage of certain taxes, grants, and other money. The City's four
kinds of funds, governmental, fiduciary, internal service and proprietary, use different
accounting approaches as explained below.

Governmental funds - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental
funds. Governmental funds focus on how resources flow in and out with balances
remaining at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using
an accounting method called modified accrual, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information shows
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future
to finance the City’s programs.



CITY OF INDUSTRY
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We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmenial activities (reported
in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds
through a recongiliation foilowing the fund financial statements. .

Proprietary funds — The City maintains three enterprise funds and an internal service
fund. Enterprise funds and internal service funds are classified as proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for the IPUC, Industry Hills Expo Center, and Housing Authority.

Fiduciary funds ~ Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an
agent for individuals, other gavernments and/or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial
in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement or resuits of
operations.

The City as Trustee
Reporting the City’s fiduciary responsibilities

The City is the frustee, or fiduciary, for certain amounts held on behaif of developers,
property owners, and others. These fiduciary activities are reported on the separate
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets
are used for their intended purposes. Therefore, fiduciary activities are exciuded from
the City's other financial statements because the assets cannot be used to finance
operations.
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The City as a Whole

Our analysis focuses on the net assets {Tables 1 and 3) and changes in"net assets
(Tables 2 and 4) of the City's governmental and business activities.

Governmental activities

Tabie 1
Net Assels
Governmental Activities
2011 2010
Current and other assets $ 610,712,467 $ 616,792,472
Capital assets, net 667,974,043 669,756,030
Total assets 1,278,686,510 1,286,548,502
Long term debt outstanding 669,416,499 707,082,180
Other liabilities 43,748,007 48,162,587
Total liabilities 713,164,506 755,244 767
MNet assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 484,004,110 348,372,793
Unrestricted (158,160,221) (77.475,400)
Restricted for:
' Debt service 105,975,428 185,498,511
Capital projects ' 43,702,687 74,907,831
Total net assets $ 565,522,004 $ 531,303,735

As noted above, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $565.5 million at
June 30, 2011.

The largest portion of the net assets is restricted by external sources on how the funds
may be used. Approximately $484 million is the City's investment in its capital assets
net of related debt. It should be nated that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these fiabilities. [n addition, approximately $44 million of the City's funds are
restricted for the City's future projects and approximately $196 million are restricted for
the City’s future debt service obligations.

The City's total assets under governmental activities decreased over the prior year due
to a reduction in the current year’s revenues.

The overall decrease in the City’s total liabilities is related to the City's payments on its
long-term debt obligations.
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Table 2
Change in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

2011 2010
Revenues:
Taxes $ 127,923,502 § 130,369,340
Revsnues from use of money and property 26,235,003 37,630,250
Other revenuss 1,405,684 690,958
Community development 2,717,029 2,769,918
2000 COPS reserve - 1,004,470
Total revenues 158,281,218 172,464,936
Expenses:
General government 7,934,449 7,876,187
Support services 6,603,674 6,219,967
Community development 2,648,342 2,736,539
Community services 4,653,653 3,991,824
Public safety 11,298,585 7,391,485
Capital projects and public works 41,361,599 46,775,279
Interest expense 33,694,214 36,509,873
lLoss on disposal of assets, net 7,686,222 160,242
SERAF payment 6,810,449 33,079,324
Amortization of bond issuance costs 1,349,964 1,398,383
Total expenses 123,941,161 146,139,103
Increase in net assets before transfers 34,340,057 26,325,833
Transfers, net {121,788) (8,853,461)
Increase in net assets $ 342182690 § 17,472,372

The revenues reported as governmental activities, decreased by approximately $14.2
million which was a result of decreasing revenues in the use of money and property.

The City's total expenses, including transfers decreased approximately $31 million from
prior year. The decrease is mainly due to a lower SERAF payment paid to the County of
Los Angeles compared to the prior year and reduction in the transfers.

The increase in net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, is mainly due to
the reduction in the City's outstanding debt of approximately $108 million offset by an
increase in new debt of $45 million.

The deficit balance shown for the governmental activities unrestricted net assets
reflected an increase of $81 million from the prior year's deficit batance. The increase in
the deficit bafance is reflective of the City's increase in investments in capital assets with
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monies other than debt related. The deficit reflects the extent to which the City has
deferred to future periods the financing of certain liabilities (i.e. claims and judgments,
workers' compensation, compensated absences). While accounting is primarily
concerned with when a liability is incurred, financing focuses on when a liability wiill be
paid. The City budgets resources needed to liquidate a liability during the year in which
the fiability is to be paid.

Business-type activities

Table 3
Net Assets
Business-Type Activities
2011 2010
Current and other assets 3 4763,367 % 4,820,423
Capital assets, net 34,920,920 36,122,561
Total assets 39,684,287 40,942,984
Other liabilities 575,129 403,109
Total liabilities 575,129 403,109
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 34,920,920 36,122,561
Unrestricted 4,188,238 4,417,314
Total net assets $ 39,109,158 $§ 40,539,875

Total net assets for the City's business-type activities decreased approximately 51.4
million as compared to the prior year. The decrease in total net assets is primarily due to
the loss from operations that was not offset by transfers from the governmental activities.
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The change in net assets for business type activities is summarized as follows:

Table 4~
Change in Net Assets

Business-Type Activities

2011 2010
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 5115396 § 5,141,979
Expenses:
Purchased electricity 2,651,349 2,541,261
Transmission and distribution expenses 788,360 741,810
Cost of expo operations 2,951,508 2,911,596
Cost of housing authority operations 278,684 507,456
Total expenses 6,667,901 6,702,123
Loss from operations before transfers {1,552,505) (1.560,144)
Transfers, net 121,788 8,853,461
Change in net assets $ (1,430,717) % 7,293,317

Charges for services decreased approximately $0.03 million during the current year,
which was due decrease in water sales and equestrian center revenues which was
offset by an increase in the electric revenues.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.

The General fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year the General Fund reflects a fund balance of approximately $219 million which is an
increase from prior year. This increase was a resuit in being able to mainfain our
revenues and expenditures comparable to the prior year which resulted in a change in
fund balance of $14 million for the current year.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for major capital outiay and infrastructure
improvements for the City. The fund balance as of year-end amounted to approximately
$158 million, a decrease from prior year of $22 million. This decrease results from a
decrease in revenues of approximately $5 million offset by an increase in net other
financing sources {uses) of $27 million. Although expenses decreased over the prior
year they stiff amounted to $42 miflion which resulted in the $22 million decrease in the
fund balance.
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The Debt Service Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest on outstanding
bond obligations. During the year the City issued $43 million of refunding bonds to
- redeem $45 mitlion-of the 2004 GO bonds to take- advantage of favorable interest rates.
The fund balance decreased approximately $15 million due to the monies being
transferred to the General and Capital projects funds to fund various capital projects.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City adopts a budget every fiscal year. There was one amendment made to the
budget during the year. The City decreased their budgeted general fund expenditures
by approximately $0.5 million at mid-year. Differences between the budget and actual
expenditures for the general fund are shown below:

Table 5
General Fund Budget to Actual Comparison

Original Revised

Budget Budget Actual Vartance
Legislative 306,089 % 311,834 § 292,360 § 19,474
General administration 3,107,631 2,460,329 2,669,904 (209,575)
Community development 1,136,881 1.024,865 1,181,926 (157,061)
Community services 3,393,400 3,794,850 4,080,845 {286,095)
Public safety 6,353,100 5,438,800 5,879,200 {440,400)
Public works 15,508,551 16,240,156 15,936,074 304,082
Suppert services 5,392,979 5,634,795 5,874,351 {339,556)
Capital projects 125,000 25,000 20,497 4,503
Total expenditures 35,321,631 ¢ 84,830,629 ¢ 35935257 § (1,104,628)

General administration actual expenditures were over the amended budget by $0.2
miliion. This was due to expenditures for professional fees being higher than anticipated
during the budget process as there were fewer activities requiring these services.

Community development costs were over the amended budget amount by $0.2 million.
This was due to an increase in the expenditures for professional services and legal
publications were greater than what was anticipated during the budget process.

Community services exceeded its budgeted amount as additional landscaping and
property maintenance projects were necessary and unknown at the time of the budget

process.

Public safety costs exceeded budget by $0.4 million due to requesting additional
services from the Los Angles Sherriff Department because special task forces were
requested from the City Council.

Public works actual costs were below the amended budgeted amount by $0.3 million
due to decreases in property maintenance costs and expenses incurred on the strest
and roads.

-10-
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Support services actual costs were $0.3 million over the amended budget primarily due
to actual expenditures for group benefits and repairs to vehicles and office equipment
were higher than what was anticipated at the time of the-budget process.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets

Net capital assets for governmental activities as of June 30, is summarized as follows:

Table 6
Capital Assets at Year-End

Governmental Activities

2011 2010
Land $ 325603626 3 346,448,497
Construction in progress 39,182,457 31,944,635
Buildings and improvements 125,219,600 125,881,267
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 6,426,304 5,854,100
Infrastructure 288,790,929 275,994 584
Totals 785,222,916 786,123,083
Less accumulated depreciation (117,248,873) {106,867,8G5)
Net capital assets $ 667974043 $ 679,255218

As of June 30, 2011, the City had approximately $668 million invested in capital assets
including buildings, land, roads, and other general infrastructure net of accumulated
depreciation. This amount represents a net decrease of $11.3 million over last year.
Land decreased $20.8 million as several parcels of real estate were sold during the year.
Construction in progress increased by $7.2 million as the City increased their projects for
the City's infrastructure. Infrastructure increased by $12.8 million as these projects were
completed and capitalized during the year.

11 -
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Net capital assets for business activities as of June 30, is summarized as follows:

- Table? -
Net Capital Assets af Year-End

Business-Type Activities

2011 2010

Land 5 6,764,880 § 6,764,880
Water rights 441,200 441,200
Construction in progress 2,558 776,528
Buildings and improvements 49,910,294 49,074,428
Source of supply 4,477,162 4,477,162
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 965,183 827,086

Totals 62,561,277 62,361,284
Less accumulated depreciation (27,640,357} ({26,238,723)

Net capital assets $ 34920920 $ 36,122,561

Capital assets related fo business activities belong to IPUC and the Industry Hills Expo
Center. Decrease in net capital assets was mainly related to the depreciation of the

capital assets.

Debt

At June 30, 2011, the City of Industry had total long term debt outstanding of
approximately $669.8 million due to outside third pariies. In addition there was $360
million in IUDA bonds owned by the City and $154 million in IUDA and City bonds owned

by PFA has been eliminated in the statement of net assets and Table 8 below.

Table 8
Qutstanding Debt, at Year-End

Governmental Activities

2011 2010
General obligation bonds $ 157,050,000 § 168,905,000
Revenue bonds 206,270,000 214,550,000
Certificates of parficipation -
Refunding lease revenue bonds 7,775,000 © 8,460,000
Tax allocation bonds 292,175,001 312,880,000
Deferred amounis 1,009,252 (1,855,955)
CPEB henefits payahle 5,020,440 3,966,527
Compensated absences 116,806 176,608
Totals $ 660,416,499 § 707,082,180

2.
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Bond issuances and refundings

On August 31, 2010, the City issued $43 million of General Obligation Refunding Bonds
(the "2010 GO Refunding Bonds"). Proceeds from the 2010 GO Refunding Bonds were
used to refund the $27,245,000 2004 GO Refunding Bonds, Seriles A, and the
$29.015,000 2004 GO Refunding Bonds, Series B. The bonds were fully redeemed on
September 17, 2010. Bonds are secured by property taxes received by the City and
reimbursement funds received from the IUDA related to ioans between the City and
[UDA for acquisition and construction of public facilties by IUDA. The 2010 GO
Refunding Bonds have interest rate ranging from 0.375% to 5.00% and a maturity date
of July 1, 2030.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City has experienced steady development within the City limits during the past year.
Economic trends in the Los Angeles area are comparable with the indices. The
assessed valuation of property located within the City boundaries decreased slightly
during the past year and the City anticipates a stabilization of the property values in the
upcoming year. This is reflective of both the State and National economics.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2012. The following is a summary of major capital improvement projects
for the City and IUDA.

During the year the Industry Urban-Development Agency transferred various parcels of
tand and construction projects to the City.

Sunset Ave Grade Separation

Azusa Ave Bridge Seismic Retrofit

Brea Canyon Road Grade Separation at Currier Road

Nelson Avenue widening from Willow to Sunset Ave

The Industry Business Center an ongoing construction project

Resurfacing Puente, Valley Blvd and Gale Ave

The Grand Cross Development Electrical Substation improvements an ongoing
construction project

Various roadway improvements such as widening, resurfacing, street fighting.

YVVVYVYYY
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Legislative Update & Impact

City staff has continued to monitor legislation that may have an impact on local
government. During the recent years, there were a number of bills that dealt with local
government. The following is a summary of legislation that affected the City of Industry.

The Governor of California signed ABXI 26 on June 29, 2011 making certain changes to
the Redevelopment Law, including suspending most of the redeveiopment agencies
activities such as incurring indebtedness or entering or modifying contracts.

AB X| 27 was also signed by the Governor of California on June 29, 2011 establishing

an Alternative Voluntary Redevelopment Program, whereby, a redevelopment agency
will be authorized to continue to exist and carry out provisions of the Redevelopment

-13-
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Law requiring the participating cities to make specified arnual remittances fo the
applicable county auditor-controller.

The California Redevelopment Association, League of California Cities and several
California Cities challenged the constitutionality of the state’s plan to eliminate all
redevelopment agencies within the State unless they agree to pay $1.7 billion for FY
2011-12 and $400 million in subsequent budget years. The hearing was held on
November 10, 2011. On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court found
Assembly Bill X1 26 to be constitutional and upheld the State’s ability to dissolve
redevelopment agencies. The Court also found Assembly Bill X1 27 to be invalid. On
February 1, 2012 the City of Industry will become the successor agency for the IUDA.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for
all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any
information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should
be directed to the Finance Department at the City of Industry, PO Box 3305, City of
Industry, California 91744,
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 20, 2011

COMPOMNENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT UNIT
INDUSTRY
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE CONVALESCENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS HOSFITAL
ASSETS
Gash 3 4,124,723 3 488,299 § 4,813,022 § 3,621,714
Cash and invesiments with fiscal agent 161,555,717 161,555,717
Investments 216,464,942 3,706,222 220,171,164
Accounts recelvable, less allowance for
doubtful accounts of $150,000 for primary
government and $42,197 for
component unit 1,444,989 385,981 1,830,870 1,284,272
Receivables - current 20,444,257 129,459 20,573,716
Inventorics 53,408 53,406 62,400
Contract advances and cther assets 5,232,416 5,232,416 154,778
Investments with fiscal agent - restricted 143,739,091 143,738,091
Bond issuance costs, net 10,864,868 10,864,668
Receivables - noncurrent 18,827,500 18,827,500
Lanrd held for rasale 23,014,164 23,014,184
Capital assets not heing depreciated:
Land 325,603,626 8,764,880 332,388,506
Water rights 441,200 441,200
Source of supply 4,477,162 4,477,162
GConstruction in progress 39,182,457 2,558 39,185,015
Capital assels being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation:
Bulidings and Improvements 125,219,800 49,910,294 175,128,894 1,275,002
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 6,426,304 865,183 7,391,487 1,650,262
infrastructure 288,790,920 288,750,929
Less: accumulated depreciation (117,248,873} {27,640,357) {144.889,230) (2,299,168)
Total capital assets, net of depreciation 667,974,043 34,920,920 702,894,963 626,176
Total assets 1,278,686,510 30,684,287 1,318,370,797 5,750,340
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 25,042,768 394,408 28,237,176 1,220,208
Rentat deposits and advances 5,153,713 180,721 5,334,434
Due to Rductary funds 5,427 95,427
Accrued expenses 12,656,099 12,656,099 1,507,650
Long-term liabilities:
Portion due or payable within ohe year 41,944,301 41,944,301
Porllon due or payable after cne year 527,472,198 627,472,198 37,399,743
Total liabilities 713,164,506 575129 713,739,635 40,127,601
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 484,004,110 34,820,920 518,925,030
Unrestricted {158,160,221) 4,188,238 {153,971,983) (34,377,261)
Restricted for:
Debt service 195,975,428 195,975,428
Capital projects 43,702,687 43,702,687
Total net assets 5 585,522,004 38 39,109,158 % 604,631,162 § {34,377,261)

The accompanying notes are an integral parf of this statement.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TCQ THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 201

Total fund balance of governmentat funds 3 1,098,778.629

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assels are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are nof financial resclrces
and therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

City infrastructure and capital assefs 604,333,688

|UDA infrastructure and capital assets 180,889,028

Accumulated depraciation (117,248,873}
Total capital assets 567,974,043

Diffarence between fair market value and book value of land transferred

between City and IUDA (15,936,710}

Aond issuance costs represent costs assoclated with the issuance of

lang-term debt which are deferred and amortized over the period which

the debt is outstanding. The costs are reported as expendiures of the

current period in the governmantal funds, 10,864,668

Cther assets and liabililies are not available for current period expenditures

or to provide for current resources. Thase consist of:
Accrued interest payable on bonds payable (14,295,530)
Other interast receivable on City and {UDA owned bonds (2,183,817}

Long-term tabilities appficable o the City's governmental activilies are not
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as
fund fiabifities. These labilities consist of:

City of industry:
Genera! obligation bonds and other - Current porticn (19,270,000)
General obligation bonds and other - Long term {343,770,000}
Deferred charge on refunding - Current partion 730,629
Deferred charge on refunding - Long term 4,086,389
Issuance discount - Current portlon (989,612}
Issuanca discounti - Long term (8,011,162)
OPEB benefits payable (5,020,441)
Compensated absences (104,098)
Public Facllities Authority:
General obligations bonds - Current pottion (895,000)
General obligation bonds - Long (erm {31,000,000)
Tax allocation revenue bonds - Current portion (11,245,000)
Tax aliosation revenue bonds - Long term {118,580,000)
Refunding lease ravenue bonds - Current portion (675,000)
Rafunding lease revenue bonds - Long term (7,100,000}
Issuance discount - Current partion 57.411
{ssuance discount - Long term 343,011
Industry Urban-Development Agancy:
Tax allocation bonds - Gurrent portion (36,457 ,807)
Tax allocalion bonds - Long term (607,635,273)
Deferred charge on refunding - Current portion 309,142
Neferred charge on refunding - Long term 1,627,920
Issuance premium - Current porlion {223,676)
Issuance premium - Long term {938,304)
Compensated absences (12,708)
Total liabllities {1,182,674,379)
Investment in City and iUDA bonds (513,257,880)
Tay allocation bonds cwned by City and PFA 513,257,880
Accrued interest payabie on City and IUDA bonds owned by City and PFA 9,100,488
Accrued interast receivable on City and [UDA bonds owned by City and PFA (2,100,488)
Net assets of governmental activities § 565,622,004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances of totaf governmental funds 8

(24,932,330)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Capital outlays, project improvement costs, and purchases of real estate
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, In the
statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated

over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Capital ouflays as expenditures
Depreciation expense

In the statement of activities, only the gain /loss on the sale and disposal

of assets is reported wheraas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale
increase financial resources. Thus, the change In net assets differs from the
change in fund balance by cast of assets sold cr disposed of.

Cost of capital assets disposed of or retired

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds, but issuing debt increases jong-term liabilities in the statement of
of net assets. Repayment of bend principal is an expenditure in the
governemental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities
in the statement of net assats. These consist of the following:

Proceeds fram bonds issued, discounts, net of premiums

on bonds issued and payments to refunded bond escrow agents

Redemption of bends, including amortized refunding fee

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is an expenditure in the
governmental funds but reduces the liability in the staternent
of net assets

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds. These ftems consist of:

Change in accrued interest payable

Amortization of bond issuance costs

Increase in bond issuance costs

Net change of bond premiunvdiscount and deferred amount

on refunding

Change in compensated abscences

Change in OPEB obligation

Net changs in interest receivable on City and PFA owned bonds

Interest income from invesiment in City and [UDA bonds
Interest expense from investment in City bonds
Interest expense from investment in [UDA bonds

Change in net asseis of governmental activities $

21,708,147

(10,515,442)

{12,972,694)

{46,788,666)

45,997,913

63,551,224

12,271
(1,318,485)
316,068
(31,479)
59,802
{1,053,914)
87,853
(42,073,749)
3,303,452
38,770,298

34,216,289

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,

- 50 -




IFNI

851601 6E ¢ 2z09£9'6 4 1E8'6/T LL $ "SOE'E6L'8L
gez'egl'y LE6 0P {205°502) S18°Z5EY
0Z6'02Z6'VE LB0SES'A BLE'S8P 1L 06+ 0+8°EL
6Z1°G2G SL0'0E 6L0'8%E G60°/61
124081 19561 #G1'60l
g0 8¢ bl So'zel S60' /61
{82'FR9°6E L2£0'999'6 058°/20'1L 00F 06£'8L
0Z6°026'FE 160'G656 6SEGEY' 1L 0B%'0OF8'EL
(L5 0b9'LT) (gzg'iol L) (CZATINAY) 609711 2°E8)
£91'696 066'0E8 e6LvEL
v62'0L6'6Y 819°v20'Y Zl8'Leb'eg PFO'FOY 22
7oL LYY A LA
855'¢ 255'z
00Z LY 00z Lvy
098'v9.'9 08E'6Z4°9 005'GE
ono'e 000't
90%'¢S a0%'et 000°01
655971 657928
186°G8¢ 12582 05t°'268
gezooL’'e Zezool's
662'88% $ ov6'0f ¢ +16'29 ¢ 6.2'6VE
110g ALMOHLNY HIINAD NOISSININOD
‘0¢ INNP INIWADYNYIW Odx3 §31L1LN 2119nd
ONISNOH - STIH AHLSNAN! AH1SNANI
ANV AJH3d08d
SIVLOL AHLSNANI ALIHOHLNY AH1SNONE
40 ALD TYIYLSNANI 40 ALID
STYNOILLYIHOTIY
-OIAID
1102 ‘'0€ ANNF
SANNLD AXY LI H20Hd
S13SSY 13N 40 INIWIALYLS

AYISNANI O ALID

-uawales siy) jo ued eibeiur ue ase saou Buiiuedwoooe ay |

S19SSE 18U [B10 |
pa1olasaIun
S19SSE [B)IdED Ul paISaAU|
S13a8SVY 13N

songel 210 L
SeoUBAPE PUE S1sodsp jBludy
sjqeied sjuncooy
‘Sefgel Jusuny
s3alavini

SISSSE 1210
18U ‘s1esse endeo o]
uojieoaldap pejenumode ss97

$8J4n]x¥y pue ainyuing quawdmbg

sjuawaAoidu pue sBulping
Ajddns jo sainog
ssa1Boud Uy UojoMASULD
syBis 1o1BAN
pue

8)8SSE JUSIMOUON]
sysodaq

1505 12 ‘'sanddns pue s[eLsiel Lo AlojusA|

seiqeAlanal JBuin

3|geAI9I8] SIUNOIDY

SIIBWISAAU|

susodsp pue ysegd
IS]9SSE JUaIND

$.1388Y



-2e-

UBLWBIENS syt jo Ued [eifsyu ue 2l sejou Sujiuedwonoe au

451601 6E § 7eD'9ET6 L A t TGOE'EAL'ZL $ Jeak jo pud ‘S)asse 1PN
GLF'BES'OF 780'689°6 L95'ShLTL zeg'ras gl 1eaf yo BuuurBag 'spasse JoN
(r1eoeL) (0g0'cs) {ogL'eeR) {125'L1L5) sjesse 1ou Uy sebueyn
687121 - EVRFLE rs0'258) sJagsuen L
{R66°860'L) [CITE) Tizw (9/8'560'L) spunj juowuraaoh saulo €3N0 S1BYSUB |
182'812°1 G69 042616 ZZR'TVT spUny jusliuRACE JSUIo Woll Ut SISgsuel |
SHUIJSNYHL
NCSAE {090'es) (g/8'0v8'L) [2G e SYIASNYHL FUCA39 (SSCT) IWOON!
LZ9'LE - ZrZal B/ESL sonuaAs. Superado-uoy B0,
129'1E real BLEGL Swogul IS9IAU]
S3NNIATY DNILYHIJC-NON
{121'v85"L) (090°'es) {5l 29t} 8k1'92E SNOILVe3d0 WO (SSOT IWOONI
Z06'£99°9 EEEET 9051562 B0LLEY'E sesuadyxa Bupessde |E10)
29 vEs 51855% JUa0nNoUouU 0 fesods|p Uo $507
£6L°20F 1 LOE'ES Z6R'9rL 008°Z45 vopeaidag
YL GAL #96'GHL suopelado Apoyine Bursnoy 0 1500
BEY'DLE BEP VL6 suafierado Ja)ua2 odxa Jo IS0
660'050'C 560'050'C Apounoale paselding
Y9G P07 2.L°0E2°L IpE'rLE UofensIULIpE [BJoUDD
hlsE=3hig]

S3ASNILXI ONLLYHIHO

GI.580 G §29'5e2 €62 7601 IGRE9/E sanuaAa) Bunesado fejo)

80Z'GF 69Z'St BLOAUY JALj)0 PUB S3AISS [BUDESINA! IBLIO
ooi'zes 0041225 20U $UOISSRIULYD
gLe'i6) GZ9'52T CBL'TIS SWOoU| FRIUSY

L9 06F'E Lya'06¥°E sales oo -
LYE'1TT 4 $ ¢t Lp8'LZT ¢ S0IAIDS PUB S9IES IBIEA

saojales pue sames 1o} sefieyn
SIANNIATYH ONILYHALO

Liac ALMOHLNY YALNZD NOISSIWWOD

'0€ ANNP INIWIOVNYIN 0dx3 531LILN Shend

SNISNOH - STIH AHLSNAN! AHLSNON]

aNY ALY3d0odd
STv10L AHLSNANI ALEHOHLNY AYLSNAaNI
S0 ALID YT LSNANI 40 ALD
= TIYNOILYSHO3Y
“OIAID

1102 '0€ ANNF O3AN3 HyJA JHLHOA
SONND AYYLIRIdOHd - S138SY 1IN NI
SADNYHD ONY ‘STSNALXT 'SINNIASY 40 INIW31VLS
AYLSNANI S0 ALID



—pz-
“uawalEs sugt jo ed [EuBaiul ue aie sejou Buuedwosoe ay )

08Z'9LY § _d18EL 3 (99c'LEn’L) ¢t Bzl $ sannioe bunessda {(ur pasn) Aq papiaoud yses 18N
SpUny JUsWUEA0G 1310 o3 ang
{gg0'e) (gx9'g) 180 Ut play spsodag
Zag'LL [A: 1= ) $25UBADE PUB SUSOCOD |RIUSH
LL0'EaY (16274 €9L'Le 859'68 aiqeied sjuncony

sanuqey U (35e8.00p) aseauny|
SpUN) MBWLPAGE 13RS Woly 8N

(BasLL) (BgsiLL) . Kropenu
EZR'SEE 629682 alqeA08; Jag
{o48'zOL) {666'1) (L28'004) B|QBAIRSR. SJLNOIDY
519558 U] 8sEa.109p (a58a10U])
29 p29 pauopueqe Ss193foud jepdel
£6L'20F L LOE'ER TER'IPL 009245 uoyepaidag

sseppae Gunerada (u) pesn) Aq papinosd yses
18U 0} ss07 Bupelsado o[1ouaas! o} Siewsnipy
(£21'v28°1) $ {0a0'es} $ {51z2'20%')) $ gpi'ges $ {8501} awoou Bunesade
SILIAILIY ONILLYHIAE (N g3SN) AT GIAACUD HSYD 13N
OL (SSOT) INOINI ONELYHILO 40 NOILYITIONODIIN

587 28F ¢ or6'0l $ +i5'49 5 64L6KE g LLOZ "0¢ sunp ‘uses
£ra'Lis L99'eS c£or'oze 265'/69 0102 ‘L AInr ‘usen
{rre’ear) 652'21 {sze'z51) (pe2'2ye} ysao Ul (es2108p) B5E.IUI JoN
{F58'308) 18552 TF2 Ot 675 2ca) sapaae Sunsaaur Aq pspraoid (Ul pasn) ysen Jsn
2o 1§ A BLE Gk peAIROB] BLIOOL jERJRI|
(9av'or9) (855°2} (gzE'L£3) sluawisanuy jo saseyRIng
SILAILDY DNILSHAN] WOHL SMOTd HSYD
6E21TL = £F8 FiB IR saANDe Buioueuy eudes-uoy (Ul pasn} A9 papiaosd ysen 18N
BB bzh Bl WGOEse) SPUNE IBUYI0 Wal) S1jsuel]
Spunj JaUie 0l elajsued]
SAILIAILIY ONIDNYNIS TY L4V NON WOHS SMOT4 HSVD
(6r5ZIL) = (G241 - saAne Bupuewy @ndes w pasn ysea 18N
(apsz11) BFSZTL) Slasse Eden jo uonisinbay
SHILIAILDY ONISNYNIL VLY D WOYL SMO1L HSVYD
082911 ZLEEL [EEE) BCE gt | selinfoe Bunesado (ur pesn} Aq peplnald uses YaN
GER'LLL'S BORGOZ LYZLEL'E 9RIVLILE samanae Gupelado W) sMmONING USES 1810
mow_mow 2808°607 aosuadxa BANEISIUNLPE pUE “Em,.:wm Jap ﬂ.:UEhmn_
1Z20'TLEY LWZTIEL'E 98L'FLLE saafoidwa pue sranddns o] siuawied
ISMOIN0 YsED
SitFees S79'Gee Gi8'S0V | GL9Z06E samanoe Bunesado wou) smoju yses ejo)
AN $7Eé9%ze $ CZgE0L L 4 GI9206E ky S1R5N pue sratlolsnd woy sididey
ISAOLUE YsED
SHILIAILDY SNILYHIHO AOHD SMOTS HEYD
3874 ALHOHINY HIINTD NOISSININGD
'og ANNC AINTWISVNTA Od¥3 S3ILMILN Sand
ONISNOH “§TTH AYLSNANI AHISNOM]
ONY ALH3d08d4
STV10L AMISNANT ALEOHLAY AYLSNANI
20 ALID TYIHLSNONE 40 ALID
~TYNOILvIuoay
-AND

1102 "0€ INNC GIANT "Y3IA IH1 HO4
SONNS AYY 1ML OEd
SMOTH HSYD 40 ANFWILYLS
AH1SNANI 40 ALID



CITY OF INDUSTRY

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

CEFERRED TOTALS
ASSESSMENT COMPENSATION JUNE 30,
DISTRICTS PLANS 2011
ASSETS
Cash % 211,548 $ 5 211,548
Investments 1,024,663 1,102,150 2,126,813
Other receivables 1,566 1,566
Investments with fiscal agent - restricted 512,452 512,452
Due from cther government funds 95,427 95,427
Total assets 1,845,650 1,102,150 2,947 806
NET ASSETS, held in trust for
deferred compensation
and other purposes $ 1,845,656 % 1,102,150 § 2,947,806

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-24 -




CITY OF INDUSTRY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

DEFERRED TOTALS
ASSESSMENT COMPENSATION JUNE 30,
DISTRICTS PLANS 2011
ADDITIONS
Taxes $ 836,121 $ $ 638,121
Revenues from use of money and property 4,315 4,315
Participants cenfributions 44,152 44152
Net increase in fair value 174,665 174,665
Total additions 640,436 218,817 859,253
DEDUCTIONS
General administration 4,125 3,574 7,699
Participant distributions 8,857 8,857
Bond principat payments 270,000 270,000
Band interest expense 239,368 239,366
Total deductions 513,491 12,431 525,922
Changes in net assets 126,945 208,386 333,331
NET ASSETS, beginning of year 1,718,714 895,764 2,614,475
NET ASSETS, end of year 3 1,845,656 §$ 1,102,150 § 2,947 806

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies

Description of the reporting entity

The City of Indusiry (referred to as the "City") is a municipal corporation governed by an elected
five-member council of which the mayor is appointed by the members of the city council. The
accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the government has a continuing oversight responsibility. The oversight responsibility is
determined on the basis of taxing authority, funding, and appointment of governing boards and
scope of public service. Blended component units, which include the financial activities of the
Industry Urban-Development Agency (referred to as the "{UDA"), the Civic-Recreational-Industrial
Authority (referred to as "CRIA”), the Industry Public Utilities Commission (referred to as “IPUC"),
the Industry Public Facilities Authority (referred to as the "PFA") and the Industry Property and
Housing Authority (referred to as the "Housing Authority”), although legally separate entities, are in
substance, part of the government’'s operations. Data from these units are combined with data of
the primary government (the City of Industry). The Industry Convalescent Hospital, as further
explained in Note 16, is discretely presented in a separate column in the combined financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government. Each blended and
discretely presented component unit has a June 30th year-end. Financial statements for the City of
Industry may be obtained from the finance department located at 15625 East Stafford Street, City of
Industry.

Blended Component Units:

IUDA was established to develop and finance the orderly growth and development within the City
and is governed by a board appointed by the City Council. The IUDA is represented by Capital
Projects, Debt Service and Trust and Agency funds.

CRIA was established to develop and finance projects within the City and is governed by a
commission of five members. Four members are appointed by the City Council and one member by
{UDA Board. CRIA is represented by Capital Projects and Proprietary funds.

IPUC was established to provide reliable utility service at reasonable rates to the residents and to
assist in the promotion and stability for business owners in the City. |PUC manages the Industry
Waterworks System and the Industry Electric System; a Board that consists of the council members
of the City of Industry governs the IPUC. The IPUC is represented by Proprietary funds.

PFA was established for the purpose of establishing a vehicle to reduce local borrowing costs,
accelerate construction, repair and maintenance of needed public capital improvements. PFA is
reprasented by a Debt Service and Capital Projects fund.

The Housing Authority was established to manage the property and housing rental activity in the
Cily. The Housing Authority is represented by a Proprietary Fund.

Discretely Presented Component Unit:

The Industry Convalescent Hospital, dba El Encanto Healthcare and Habilitation Center, is a non-
profit long-term care nursing facility operated by a governing board of directors and is discretely
presented in the financial statements.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Complete financial statements of certain individual blended component units may be obtained from
the finance department which is located at 15625 East Stafford Street, City of Industry.

Basis of accounting and measurement focus

The accounting and financial reporting policies of the City of Industry conform to generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America {(GAAP). GAAP includes all relevant
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. In accordance with GASB
Statement Nos. 20 and 34, for its business-type activities, enterprise funds and similar discretely
presented component units, the City has elected to apply Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) pronouncements, Accounting Principles Board {APB) opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements, in which GASB prevails. The following is a summary of the
more significant policies:

The basic financial statements of the City are composed of the following:

+« Government-wide financial statements
« Fund financial statements
e Notes to the financial statements

New Accounting Pronouncement

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the City implemented Government Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 54 (GASB 54), “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions.” The requirements of this statement are effective for financial statement periods
beginning after June 15, 2010.

GASB 54 enhances the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance
classifications that can be more consistently applied, and it clarifies the existing governmental fund
type definitions. It establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources reported in governmentatl funds. These classifications are described in the Fund Balance
section of this footnote.

GASB 54 also provides guidance for classifying stabilization amounts on the face of the balance
sheet and requires disclosure of certain information about stabilization arrangements in the notes to
the financial statements.

The definitions of the General Fund, special revenue fund type, capital projects fund type, debt
service fund type, and permanent fund type are also clarified by the provisions in this statement.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Government-wide financial statements

The City’'s Government-wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. These statements present summaries of
Governmental and Business-Type Activities for the City accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary
activities of the City are not included in these statements. These statements are presented on an
“economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
economic resources measurement focus, all economic resources including capital assets,
infrastructure assets and long term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net
Assets.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are
earnad while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the government-wide financial
statements rather than reported as expenditures. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a
liability in the government-wide financtal statements rather than as an other financing source.
Amounts paid fo reduce long-term indebtedness of the reporting government are reported as a
reduction of the related liability rather than as an expenditure.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to
interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Assets
have been eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental activities and
the busingss-type activilies, which are presented as internal balances. In the Statement of
Activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated; however, those transactions
between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenses are considered
to be paid first from restricted resources, and then from unrestricted resources.

Fund financial statements

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each of which is
considered to be a separate accounfing entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by
providing a separate set of self-bafancing accounts, which are comprised of each fund’'s assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Fund financial statements for the primary government are governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary
funds, which are presented after the government-wide financial statements. These statements
display information about major funds individually and non-major funds in the aggregate for
governmental and enterprise funds. Fiduciary statements include financial information for fiduciary
funds and similar component units. Fiduciary funds of the City primarily represent assets held by
the City in a custodial capacity for other individuals or organizations.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting_policies (continued)

Governmental funds

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds and agency funds are presented using the
modified-accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they become
measurable and availabie as net current assets. Revenues are considered measurable when the
amounts can be estimated, or otherwise determined. Revenues are considered available if they are
collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are generally recognized when the related
liability is incurred,

Exceptions to this general rule include: (1) accumulated unpaid vacation and other employee
amounts are not accrued and (2) principal and interest on long-term debt are recognized when due.

Property taxes and interest income are susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and taxes become
measurable and available when cash is received by the City and are recognized at that time.

In the fund financiai statements, governmental funds are presented using the current financial
resources measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are
generally included on their balance sheets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the year that
resources were expended, rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of long-term debt are
recorded as other financing sources rather than as a fund liability. Amounts paid to reduce long-
term indebtedness are reported as fund expenditures,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are combined in a fund, expenses are considered
to be paid first from restricted resources, and then from unrestricted resources and committed,
assigned, or unassigned amounts are considered to have been spent when expenditure is incurred

for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be
used.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund

This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all activities of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt, principal, interest, and related costs.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital projects (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City’s ongoing organizations and activities, which are
similar to those often found in the private sector. In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are
eamed and expenses are recognized when incurred. Inventories are stated at lower of cost (first-in,
first-out method) or market value. In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds are presented
using the economic resources measurement focus. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether
current or non-current) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets.
Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net assets. The City’s proprietary funds include the Industry Hills Expo Center,
IPUC, Housing Authority, and the Internal Service Fund of the City. These funds are presented on
the accrual basis of accounting.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses,
The Hospital, a proprietary-type entity, is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Industry Public Utilities Commission

This fund accounts for activities of providing water and limited electrical services to the public.

Industry Hills Expo Center

This fund accounts for space rentals for events and equestrian activities to the general public.

Industry Propeity and Housing Authority

This fund accounts for property and housing rental activity.
Other governmental funds

Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
{other than special assessments, expendable trust or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted for expenditures for specified purposes.

-30 -



CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Fiduciary fund types

Agency Funds

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, other
governments and/or other funds.

Agency Funds are cusiodial in nature (assets equal liabilities} and do not involve measurement or
results of operations.

Capital assets and depreciation

Capital assets, including infrastructure, are recorded at cost where historical records are available
and at an estimated original cost where no historical records exist. Generally fixed asset purchases
in excess of $5,000 are capitalized if they have an expected useful life of three years or more.

Capital assets include public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets consisting of certain
improvements including roads, streets, sidewalks, medians, and storm drains.

If a cost does not extend an asset's useful life, increase its productivity or improve its operating
- efficlency the cost is regarded as repairs and maintenance and recognized as an expense as
incurred; if it does, the cost is regarded as major renewals and betterments and capitalized.

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method in the government - wide financial statements and in the fund financial
statements of the proprietary fund types.

Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations and accumulated depreciation is
reported on the respective balance sheet. The range of lives used for depreciation purposes for
each fixed asset class is as follows:

Buildings and improvements 45 vyears
Equipment 3 - 10 vyears
[nfrastructure 20 - 50 vyears

Land held for resale

Land held for resale, purchased by the City and IUDA, is reported in the fund financial statements at
fair value at the time of fransfer and in the government-wide statements at cost at the time of
acquisition. In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are reserved in an
amount equal to the carrying value of land held for resale because such assets are not available to
finance the City and iUDA’s current operations.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Cash and investments

Investments in inactive public deposits, securities and short-term obligations are stated at cost or
amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Cash deposits are reported at fair value, Short-term investments are reported at cost, which
approximates fair value. [nvestments that exceed more than one year in maturity and that are
traded on a national exchange are vaiued at their quoted market price. Certain investments that
exceed more than one year in maturity may be valued by pricing models that require inputs to the
valuation methodology that include quoted prices of similar assets and certain observable inputs.

Fund balance

In the governmentai fund financial statements, fund balances are classified in the following
categories:

» Nonspendahble — items that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form or
iterns that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

» Restricted — restricted fund balances are amounts with consfraints placaed on their use that
are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments; (b} imposed by law by constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation,

« Committed — committed fund balances encompass the portion of net fund resources, the
use of which is constrained by limitations that the City imposes upon itself at its highest level
of decision making authority (the City Council} through resolution and that remain binding
uniess removed in the same manner.

+ Assigned — assigned fund balances are amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to
be used for specific purposes. The intent can be established at either the highest level of
decision making, or by a body or an official designated for that purpose. The City Council is
authorized for this purpose.

» Unassigned — this category is for any balances that have notf been assigned to other funds
and thaf have nof been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.

Net assets
In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are categorized as follows:
¢ Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt consists of capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation, and reduced by outstanding debt aftributed to the acquisition of
fhese assets.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Net assets (confinued)

» Restricted Net Assets consist of assels, net of any related liabilities, which have had
resfrictions imposed on them by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or laws through constitutional provisions or enabling
legistations. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
City's policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources, as they are
needed.

¢ Unreslricted Net Assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of Invested in
Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt or Resfricted Net Assets.

Retirement plan

The City, under a contract with the California Public Employees’ Retirement System of California,
provides a retirement plan covering all full-time and certain part-time employees of the City and
IUDA. Prior service costs are being funded over a period ending in the year 2011.

Cash equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers ail highly liquid investments
purchased with an initial maturity of three months or less fo be cash equivalents.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Management believes that the estimates utiiized in
preparing its financial statements are reasonable and prudent. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Property taxes

The valuation of property is determined as of March 1% each year and equal instaliments of taxes
levied upon secured property become delinquent on the following 10" of December and Aprit.
Taxes on unsecured property are due when billed and become delinquent after August 31" If
taxes are not paid on or before the date and time they become delinquent, a penalty of 10 percent
is added. In addition, secured property on which taxes are delinquent is sold to the State on or
about June 30" of the fiscal year. Unsecured property accrues an additional penalty of 1% per
month beginning the first day of the third month following the delinquency date.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

An initiative Constitutional Amendment, commonly known as the “Jarvis-Gann Initiative”, providing
for, among other things, certain property tax limitations, was approved as Proposition 13 on the
June 6, 1978 statewide election. The principal thrust of Proposition 13 is fo Iimit the amount of ad
valorem taxes on real property to one percent of “fuli cash value”, to define “full cash value” as the
1975-76 full cash value, fo limit annual increases to two percent and to provide for reassessment
after sale, transfer or construction.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. A receivable balance is charged off in the period in which the receivable is deemed
uncollectible. Management evaluates uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current
status of individual accounts.

Inventories
Inventories of the Industry Hills Expo Center, an enterprise fund, consist of food and beverages.
fnventories of IPUC, an enterprise fund, consist of materials and supplies. The inventories are

carried at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, first-out basis of accounting.

Bond issuance costs and premiums/discounts

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life
of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Unamortized bond issuance costs are reported aon the statement of net assets and amortized over
the term of the related debt. The costs are being amortized using the imputed interest method over
the term of the bends.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,

as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and investments

Cash and investments for governmental and business-type activities at June 30, 2011 consisted of
the following:

Statement of net assets: FUNDS
Cash 3 4,613,022
Cash and invesiments with fiscal agent 161,555,717
Investments 220,171,164
Investments with fiscal agent - restricted 143,739,001

Fiduciary funds:

Cash 211,548
[nvestments 2,126,813
Investments with fiscal agent - restricted 512,452

Total cash and investments $ 532,929,807

Cash 6,886,687
Investments 526,043,120
Total cash and investments $ 532,929,807

Cash

The City may waive collateral requirements for deposits, which are fully insured up to $250,000 by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At June 30, 2011, the City's deposits exceeded
federally insured limits by $928,636; however, such amounts are secured by the financial
institutions that hold such deposits for the City.

The Hospital's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and money market savings accounts with
initial maturities of three months or less. At June 30, 2011, the Hospital had no uninsured amounts.

Investments authaorized by the City's investment policy

Under provision of the City's Investment Policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the
California Government Code, the City may invest in the following types of investments:

Securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies
Bankers Acceptance
Commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation
or Moody’s Investor Service
Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) Deposits (referred to as “LAIF")
Repurchase agreemenis
Inactive public deposits
Savings accounts
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and investments {continued)

The City’s Investment Policy does not contain any specific provisions intended to limit the City's
exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration risk.

investments authorized by debt agreements

investments of debt proceeds held by a bond trustee are governad by provisions of the debt
agreements rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's
investment policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for
investments held by a bond trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt
agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum

Maximum Maximum Investment
Authorized Maturity Percentage in One
investment Type {in months) Allowed Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations Nane None Nane
Federal agency securifies None None None
Money market funds None Nane None
Certificates of depaosit None None None
Commercial paper None Nane None
Banker's acceptances 18 None None
U.S. corporate bonds/notes Nore None None
Municipal bonds None None None
Non-investment grade bonds None 10% None
Exchange traded funds None None None
Mortgage-backed securities None None None
Investment contracis None None None
LAIF None None None
Forelgn governiment bonds None None None
Foreign corporate bonds/notes None None Nene

Custodial credit risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the City will not be
ahle recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an
outside party. Under section 53652 of the California Government Code, it is required that the
depository secure active or inactive deposits with eligible securities having a fair market value of at
least 10% in excess of the total amount of all deposits. As of June 30, 2011, the financial institutions
that hold collateral for the City of Industry had satisfied this requirement.
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Cash and investments {continued)

Interest rate risk

. Interest rate risk is the risk of changes in market interest rates that will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in the market interest rates. One of the ways that the City and
its component units manages its exposure fo interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of
shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion
of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the
cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. The City and its component units monitor the interest
rate risk inherent in its portfolio by measuring the weighted average maturity of its portfolio.

Weighted Average

Maturity Date

Investment Type Amount {in months)
Commercial paper $ 38,177,715 0.64
Annuities 1,102,149 N/A
Federal home [oan notes 44,379,370 3.17
Banker's acceptances 12,851,013 3.22
LAIF 115,302,102 925
Held by bond trustee:

Treasury obligations 71,778,651 11.85

Government obligations 73,921,953 N/A

Money Market Funds 15,430,803 N/A

Mortgage backed securities 29,291,944 317.82

Asset backed securities 2,610,488 68.57

Municipal securities 4,348,329 108.00

Municipal obligations 3,912,660 43.07

Corporate securities 110,420,553 126.83

Investment contracts 2,515,390 156.30

$ 526,043,120

Credit risk

Credit risk is generally the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by Secfion 53601 and
Section 53635 of the Caiifornia Government Code, Section 33603 of the Health and Safety Code,
the City and its component unit’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of
year end for each investment type.
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2, Cash and investments (continued)
Minimum Raling as of Year End
legal AAfAa - BBB/Baa - CCC/Caa - Not
Investment Type Amount Rating Aaa!P-1 AfA B/B CiC Rated
Commercial paper BATT71S Aaa/P-1 5 38,177,715 % 3 5 5
Annuities 1,102,149 N/A 1,102,149
Federal home loan notes 44,379,370 N/A 44,379,370
Banker's acceptances 12,851,013 N/A 12,851,013
LAIF 115,302,102 N/A 115,302,102
Held by bond trustee:
Treasury obligations 71,778,851 N/A 71,178,651
Government obligations 73,821,953 NIA 73,921,953
Money market funds 15,430,803 N/A 14,584,078 848,725
Mortgage backed securities 29,291,944 N/A 14,977,904 4,212,305 806,054 288,106 9,007,575
Asset backed securities 2,610,488 NYA 2,670,458
Municipal securities 4,348,329 N/A 4,109,333 238,996
Municipal obligations 3,812,660 N/A 3.817,650 95,010
Corporata securities 110,420,553 INFA 652,178 33,585,791 69,440,395 1,207,924 5,534,265
investment contracts 2,515,290 NFA 2,515,390
Total Investments § 526,043,120 $ 273933350 § 45725079 § T70,246449 $§ 1.496,030 F 134,642,212

Concentration of credit risk

The investment policy of the City and its component units contain no limitations on the amount that
can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.
There are no investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds and
external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of the total investments of the City.

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The fair value of the City’s investment in the investment pool is approximately the same
as the value of the pool shares. iIncluded in LAIF’s investment poitfolio are collateralized mortgage
obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds,
and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government sponsored enterprises, and
corporations.

At June 30, 2011, the carrying amount of the investments in LAIF amounted to $115,302,102 and
its fair value amounted to $115,483,872.

Cash and investments — Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan, discussed further in Note 8, created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The market value of the plan assets at June
30, 2011, is $1,102,149.
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Interfund receivables/payables and transfers infout

Interfund transactions

Interfund receivables and payables consisted of the following at June 30, 2011:

INTERFUND INTERFUND
FUND RECEIVABLES PAYABLES
General Fund and Loan from City to Agency 5 21,603,925 §
Debt Service 897,392 2,912,109
Capital Projects 20,344,929
Other Governmental Funds 660,324
Total - governmental funds 3 23,161,641 % 23,257,038

The majority of the interfund balances were a result of routing interfund transactions due to pass
through payments and loan agreements between the City and IUDA..

All interfund assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, expenditures and operating transfers have
been eliminated in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

Interest income/axpanse paid from IUDA to PFA
on IUDA bonds $ 7,389,613

Interest income/expense paid from City to PFA
on City bonds $ 2,238,901

PFA investment in [UDA tax allocation bond and City
general obligation bond $ 163,685,000

Interest payable to City from IUDA on City owned bonds $ 4,166,792

Interest payable to PFA from IUDA and City on PFA
owned bonds 5 2,276,470

Interest income/expense paid from Proj. 1 and Proj.3

to Proj. 2 on the note receivable $ 1,047,000
Site lease prepayment between PFA and City 5 7,462,875
Pass-through income/expense from [UDA to City $ 3,033,928
Rental income/expense from IUDA to City $ 87,102
City investments in JUDA bonds $ 373,784,104
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Interfund receivables/payables and transfers infout {continued)

Interfund transfers

The City of Industry reports interfund transfers between many of its funds. Some of the transfers
are considered to be immaterial and are aggregated inio a single column or row titled “All Others”.
For the year ended June 30, 2011, the sum of all the transfers are presented in the table is as

follows:
Transfers In
Other
General Capital Dabt Governmental All

Transfers Out Fund Projacts Searvice Funds Others Totals
General fund $ 3 9,819,670 § 17,896,571 § 1,489,580 § 156,152 § 29,361,973
Capitai Projects fund 14,177,394 45,028,298 695 56,206,387
Dant Service fund 17,859,568 60,744,732 78,644,300
Other Gevernmental

Funds 1,061,940 1,061,940
All Others 589,870 407,128 1,096,998
Totais $ 20,076,962 % 71254272 % 62,924,869 3 1,886,708 % 1,218,787 § 166,371,598

The above transfers have been presented on the statement of revenue, expenditures and changes
in fund balances for the year ended June 30, 2011 as follows:

OTHER
GENERAL CAPITAL DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
TRANSFERS iN FUND PROJECTS SERVICE FUNDS TOTALS
Operating transfers in 3 29,076,962 % 70,564,402 § 62,924,869 3 1,489,580 $ 164,055,813
Transfers from enterprise
and fiduciary funds 689,870 407,128 1,096,998
Tatal transfers in 3 20,076,962 3 71,254272 § 62,924,869 §$ 1,896,708 $ 165,152,811
TRANSFERS OUT
Operating transfers out 3 29,205,821 3 56,205,692 $ 78,644,300 % $ 164,065,813
Transfers {o enterprise
and fiduciary funds 156,152 595 1,061,940 1,218,787
Total transfers out $ 29,361,973 § 56,206,387 $ 78,644,300 § 1,061,940 $§ 165,274,600

Transfers are used to (1) move funds from one fund to another fund in order to pay for capital
projects expenditures, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the
receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) revenues collected
in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with

budgetary authorizations.
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Leng-term debt

City of Indust

General obligation bonds

In February 2002, the City issued $35,000,000 Public Works Capital Improvements Taxable
General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2002, The proceeds were deposited into the City's
Redevelopment Revolving Fund, and the funds were used, along with other capital improvement
monies, for the completion, extension and construction of projects as contained in the General Plan
Implementation Program. The bonds were sold to PFA through IUDA in August 2005.

In September 2004, the City issued $27,245,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series A
Issue of 2004 and $29,015,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series B Issue of 2004.
Proceeds from the Series A issuance, along with other funds, were used to refund the City's
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Issue of 1995, and the proceeds from the Series B issuance,
along with other funds, were used to refund the City's General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Issue
of 2000.

In May 2008, the City issued $37,860,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds (the “2009 GO
Refunding Bonds”). Proceeds from the 2009 GOB Refunding Bonds, along with other funds, were
used to advance refund the $61,935,000 City General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Issue of 2001.
In addition to the funds received, the City used approximately $4,000,000 from other funds to fund
the redemption of the 2001 bonds.

On July 30, 2009, the City issued $50,975,000 of Generai Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series B
(the “2009 GO Refunding Bonds, Series B”). Proceeds from the 2009 GO Refunding Bonds, Series
B were used to refund the $72,480,000 of Public Works Capital Improvement General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Issue of 2003.

On August 31, 2010, the City issued $43,340,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds (the
"2010 GO Refunding Bonds"). Proceeds from the 2010 GO Refunding Bonds were used fo refund
the $27,245,000 2004 GO Refunding Bonds, Series A, and the $29,015,000 2004 GO Refunding
Bonds, Series B. The bonds were fully redesmed in full on September 17, 2010. Bonds are
secured by property taxes received by the City and reimbursement funds received from the IUDA
related to loans between the City and |UDA for acquisition and construction of public facilities by
IUDA. The 2010 GO Refunding Bonds have interest rate ranging from 0.375% to 5.00% and a
maturity date of July 1, 2030.
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Long-term debt {continued)

City of Industry {continued}

The following details the proceeds received of the 2010 GO Refunding Bonds and the monies used
to redeem the 2004 GO Refunding Bonds Series A and Series B:

Source of funds: Use of funds:
Amount _ Amount
Principal proceeds § 43,340,000 Principal payments § 45,425,000
Original issue premium 3,687,680 interest payments 412,037
Less: Underwriter's discount (239,014) Deferred refunding premium 572,912
Debt issuance cosis 378,717
Total funds received $ 46,788,666 Total redemption $ 46,788,666

All General Obligation Bonds are backed by the fuil authority of the City and are payable from taxes
levied on taxable property in the City until the bonds are paid.

Sales tax revenue bonds

In April 2005, the City issued $113,420,000 of Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. The net
proceeds of approximately $102,200,000 from the issuance were deposited into the
Redevelopment Revolving Fund, which constitutes a loan to IUDA; IUDA is then obligated to repay
these loans through available tax increment revenues.

During April 2008, the City issued $77,540,000 of Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. The net
proceeds of approximately $69,900,000 from the issuance were deposited into the Redevelopment
Revolving Fund, which constitutes a loan fo [UDA; IUDA is then obligated to repay these loans
through available tax increment revenues.

During April 2010, the City issued $45,380,000 of Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. Proceeds of
approximately $39,725,000 were deposited into the Redevelopment Revolving Fund, which
constitutes a lcan to IUDA; [UDA is then chligated to repay these leans through available tax
increment revenues. The remaining proceeds of approximately $4,500,000 were deposited into a
reserve account. Refer to IUDA’s 2010 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (Taxable)
for settlement of the loan.

Special bond issues

In December 1998, the City issued $6,735,000 of 1998 Revenue Bonds, the purpose of providing
funds to acquire the City of Industry Limited Obligation Refunding Improvement Bonds, Assessment
District No. 91-1. These funds, in turn, were used to advance refund and defeased the 1991
Assessment Bonds.

The 1998 Revenue Bonds are special obfigations of the City, payable from revenues consisting
primarily of debt service payments received from the Refunding Improvement Bonds which
revenues are secured by liens of unpaid reassessments on the properties within the Assessment
District.
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Long-term debt (continued)

City of Industry {(continued)

Special bond issues

Any surplus revenues, after paying administrative costs or paying of installments upon
properties which are subject to the reassessment, will be paid over to the City fo be used for
any lawful purpose of the City. The 1998 Revenue Bonds and the City of Industry Limited
Obligation Refunding Improvement Bonds, Assessment District No. 91-1 are not debt or
liabilities of the City. However, the bonds are payable solely by the revenues and funds
pledged in the indenture. Accordingly, these obligations have not been reflected as obligations
on the financial statements of the City.

The annual debt service requirements for all general obligation bonds, sales fax revenue
bonds and certificates of participation as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30, INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
2012 $ 18,106,159 $ 19,270,000 $ 37,376,159
2013 17,375,409 19,670,000 37,045,409
2014 16,613,453 20,390,000 37,003,453
2015 15,748,771 21,260,000 37,008,771
2016 14,843,426 22,185,000 37,028,426

2017-2021 57,325,514 122,835,000 180,160,514

2022-2026 28,437,594 104,255,000 132,692,594

2027-2031 5,184,547 27,660,000 32,844,547

2032-2036 400,604 5,615,000 5,915,604

Totals $ 174,035,477 $ 363,040,000 $ 537,075,477

Industry Urban-Development Agency

2003 Tax Allocation Bonds {Taxable)

On December 29, 2003, IUDA issued several bond issues to advance refund the 1995
Subordinate Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds for all three project areas, the taxable bonds that
were issued were Project No. 1 $78,720,000 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds Series A , Project No.
2 $39,730,000 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds, and Project No. 3 $44,585,000 2003 Tax
Allocation Bonds.
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Long~term debt (continued)

Industry Urban-Development Agency

2003 Tax Allocation Bonds {Taxable}

As part of the aforementioned bond issuances the IUDA and City entered into a loan
agreement in order {o enhance the security of the IUDA bonds and thereby reduce the overall
borrowing costs. The City agreed o loan IUDA $14,019,840 to secure the aforementioned
IUDA bonds and to provide an additional source of funding for the bonds. |UDA agreed to
repay all advances with interest at 8% per annum. in accordance with the loan agreement,
the City deposited with U.S. Bank (the “Trustee”) $14,019,840, hereinafter referred to as the
“Loan Fund”. The monies will be held in trust for the benefit of the City and the bond owners.
The proceeds of the Loan Fund will be used to make advances to [UDA under this loan
agreement. |UDA has assigned all of its rights to these proceeds to the Trustee as security
for the bonds and their owners. As of June 30, 2011, the City has advanced all the monies in
the Loan Fund to IUDA. These monies are deposited with U.S. Bank as trustee and have
been recorded on the accompanying financial statements as “Investments with fiscal agent —
restricted” in the amount of $14,421,308.

2003 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

On December 30, 2003, IUDA and the City entered into the “Bond Exchange Agreement’.
IUDA incurred debt to the City in the amount of approximately $213,200,000 including accrued
interest of $17,654,981 from loans from the City’s Redevelopment Revolving Fund as
described in Note 5. |UDA had agreed to payoff this debt with proceeds from the issuance of
2003 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds.

The |UDA and City determined that the 2003 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding
Bonds were not of a sufficient credit quality which would enable them to be publicly marketed.
The City was willing to acquire these bonds in exchange for the cancellation of the remaining
balance of [UDA’s indebtedness under the Revolving Fund Agreement.

On December 30, 2003, IUDA exchanged the following bonds for cancellation of the
indebtedness to the City: Project No. 1 $83,785,692 2003 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds, Project No. 2 $119,719,962 2003 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds, and Project No. 3 $8,726,529 2003 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds.

2005 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

On April 20, 2005, the City and IUDA entered into the “2005 Revolving Fund Loan
Agreement’. The City issued its 2005 Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds in the aggregate
ptincipal amount of $113,420,000 and deposited the net proceeds of approximately
$102,200,000 from this issue into the Redevelopment Revolving Fund which constitutes a
loan to IUDA. In April 2005, IUDA issued $113,420,000 of 2005 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds to the City and the City agreed to accept the bonds as full
payment of the 2005 Redevelopment Revolving Fund loan,
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Long-term debt (continued)

industry Urban-Development Agency {continued)

2005 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (continued)

In December 2005, IUDA and City amended the 2005 revolving fund loan agreement,
whereas the agreement originally provided that the principal amount of the loans was to equal
to the $113,420,000 par vaiue of the bonds. The City and {UDA have then agreed to amend
the loan agreement to provide that the principal amount of the loans equal the net proceeds of
approximately $102,200,000 deposited into the redevelopment revolving fund.

IUDA exchanged the following bonds for cancellation of the indebtedness to the City: Project
No. 1 $71,868,838 2005 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Project No. 2
$17,788,304 2005 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds and Project No. 3
$12,574,490 2005 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds.

These bonds were subject to redemption after December 1, 2007, from any available source
of funds. In March 2009, IUDA redeemed the $12,574,490 2005 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bond of Project No. 3 through funds from the sale of land and LAIF
investments. IUDA paid a redemption premium of $214,532 and accrued interest of
$2,281,625 on the outstanding principal balance of $11,020,000, at the date of redemption, for
a total redemption price of $13,516,157.

2008 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

On April 1, 2008, IUDA and City entered into the “2008 Revolving Fund Loan Agreement”.
The City issued its 2008 Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of $77.540,000 and deposited the net proceeds of approximately $69,900,000 from
this issue into the Redevelopment Revolving Fund which constitutes a loan to [UDA. In April
2008, IUDA issued $69,900,000 of 2008 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds to
the City and the City agreed to accept the bonds as full payment of the 2008 Redevelopment
Revolving Fund loan.

The bonds are payable from and secured by a pledge and a lien on the tax increment
revenues from each respective project areas and are subordinate to various bonds previously
fssued.

As of April 8, 2008, IUDA exchanged the following bonds for canceilation of the indebtedness
to the City: $33,673,437 2008 Project No.1 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds
with average interest rate of 8.25%; $31,083,173 2008 Project No. 2 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds with average interest rate of 5.75%; $5,120,289 2008 Project No.
3 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds with average interest of 10%.
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Long-term debt (confinued)

Industry Urban-Development Agency {continued)

2010 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (Taxable)

IUDA and the City, on April 20, 2010, entered into the “2010 Revolving Fund Loan
Agreement.” The City issued its 2010 Taxable Sales Tax Revenue Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of $45,380,000 and deposited the net proceeds of approximately
$40,000,000 from this issue into the Redevelopment Revolving Fund, which constitutes the
2010 Redevelopment Revolving Fund Loan, a loan to IUDA. In April 2010, IUDA issued the
2010 Subordinate Lien Tax Allocation Refunding Bands (Taxable) to the City in the amount of
$40,000,000 and the City had then agreed to accept the bonds as full payment of the 2010
Redevelopment Revoiving Fund loan.

The bonds are payable from and secured by a pledge and a lien on the tax increment
revenues from each respective project area and are subordinate to various bonds previously
issued.

As of April 20, 2010, IUDA exchanged the $40,000,000 2010 Project No. 2 Subordinate Lien
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (Taxable) with a fixed interest rate of 9.15% for cancellation
of the indebtedness to the City.

Civic-Recreaticnal-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 1

On April 16, 2002, IUDA issued $197,000,000 of Industry Urban-Development Agency Clvic-
Recreational-industrial Redevelopment Project No. 1 2002 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series B.
IUDA used the proceeds to purchase U.S. government securities to advance refunding of the
1092 and 1997 Series Bonds. The bonds are payable from and secured by a pledge and a
first lien on the tax increment revenues from Project Area No. 1.

In February 2007, IUDA called in full the 2002 |UDA Tax Allocation Bonds and delivered them
to PFA’s trustee bank, IUDA received proceeds from PFA's band transfer in the amount of
$172,438,869. Based upon the agreement among IUDA, PFA and PFA’s trustee bank, the
payments made by IUDA for the 2002 IUDA TA Bonds would be used to secure the payments
of PFA’s newly issued $169,695,000 Tax Allocation Revenue Bond (2007 PFA TAR Bonds").

Principal and interest payments are made by IUDA to PFA for the payment of the 2002 IUDA
TA Bonds. PFA then uses those monies to make principal and interest payments on the 2007
PFA TA Bonds. Any surplus funds received by PFA are returned to IUDA.

In December 2003, {UDA issued $78,720,000 of Industry Urban-Development Agency Civic-
Recreational-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 1 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds Series A, to
refund previously issued $19,275,826 Industry Urban-Development Agency Civic-
Recreational-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 1 1995 Subordinate Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds and partially repay a portion of the outstanding revolving fund debt to the
City.
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Long-term _debt (continued)

Industry Urban-Development Agency {continued)

On December 30, 2003, [UDA issued $68,090,000 of Industry Urban-Development Agency
Civic-Recreational-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 1 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series
B, with an average interest rate of 3.785%. The bonds were issued to finance the completion,
extension and construction of projects contained in the Redevelopment Plan. A portion of the
Bond proceeds were used to fund a reserve for the Bonds and to pay costs associated with
the Bond issuance.

During fiscal year 2009, an examination of the IUDA's spending of bond proceeds related to
tax exempt bonds was conducted by the Internal Revenue Service {IRS). As a result of the
examination, the IRS determined that the |UDA's bond proceeds spending of the
2003 $68,090,000 Project 1 Tax Allocation Bonds Series B (2003 Series B
Bond) issuance was in violation of IRS Section Code 149 (g) (2) related to the timely spending
requirements posed by the section code. The IUDA and the IRS agreed on a cash settlement
on the violation in the amount of $500,000 and the redemption of a portion of the 2003 Series
B bond in the amount of $27,170,000.

in November 2009, IUDA partially redeemed the $68,090,000 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds,
Series B. The partial redemption amounted to $27,170,000 and the remaining prifcipal
balance amounted to $26,470,000. _

On February 1, 2007, IUDA issued $16,038,958 of Industry Urban-Development Agency
Civic-Recreational-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 1 2007 Subordinate Lien Taxable
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of 8.00%. The bonds were sold
to the City in exchange for the cancellation of the 2006 Revolving Fund Loan with principal
and interest amounts of $15,000,000 and $1,038,958, respectively.

Transportation-Distribution-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 2

On August 15, 2002, IUDA issued $17,270,000 of Industry-Urban-Development Agency
Transportation-Distribution-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 2. 2002 Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds to advance refund $18,010,000 of outstanding 1992 Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds.

In December 2003, IUDA issued $39,730,000 of Indusiry Urban-Development Agency
Transportation-Distribution-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 2 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds
to refund a portion of the previously issued $65,103,890 Industry Urban-Development Agency
Transportation-Distribution-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 2 1995 Subordinate Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds and to repay a portion of the revolving fund debt.
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Long-term debt {continued)

Industry Urban-Development Agency {continued)

Transportation—Distribution-lndustrial Redevelopment Project No. 2 {continued)

On August 15, 2002, IUDA issued $17,4565,000 of Industry-Urban-Development Agency
Transportation-Distribution-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 3. 2002 Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds to effect an advance refunding of the previously issued $19,780,000 1992
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds.

In December 2003, IUDA issued $44,585,000 of Industry Urban-Development Agency
Transportation-Distribution-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 3 2003 Tax Alloccation Bonds
to refund previously issued $33,498,474 Industry Urban-Development Agency Transportation-
Distribution-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 3 1995 Subordinate Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds and to repay a portion of the revolving fund debt.

Source of bond payments

The Tax Allocation Bonds of all three project areas are payable from any available funds of
JUDA and are specifically secured by a pledge of property taxes. All tax revenues are to be
deposited into the debt service funds held by the fiscal agent. The funds held by the fiscal
agent, including any interest earned thereon, are to be used to pay the interest and principal
of the bonds.

The Subordinate Tax Allocation Bonds of Projects No. 1, 2 and 3 are special obligétions of
IUDA and are secured by a pledge of property tax and other available funds of IUDA subject
to liens of the bonds.

The annual debt service requirements for JUDA’s tax allocation bonds as of June 30, 2011 are
as follows:

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
2012 $ 41,073,709 $ 36,457,607 $ 77,531,316
2013 40,492,539 39,083,046 79,575,585
2014 40,055,594 41,630,023 81,685,617
2015 39,812,398 44,382,646 84,195,044
2016 39,844,299 47,341,697 87,185,996
2017-2021 217,748,049 288,021,574 505,769,623
2022-2026 196,779,400 135,423,743 332,203,143
2027 6,924,720 11,652,644 18,577,264
Totals 622,730,708 $ 643,992,880 $ 1,266,723,588
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Long-term debt {continued)

Public Facilities Authority

Project Furnding Agreement and City of Industry Public Facilities Authority Bonds

On August 1, 2005, the City, IUDA and PFA entered info a Project Funding Agreement. In
December 2001, the City had previously issued $35,000,000 Taxable General Obligation
Ronds Issue of 2002 where the proceeds were deposited into the redevelopment revolving
fund which constituted a loan to IUDA. The net proceeds of approximately $33,100,000 were
used to purchase the 2002 City Bonds from IUDA. The City and [UDA determined in order fo
provide financing for the Projects at more advantageous interest rates, it was in the best
interest of the City and its property taxpayers for PFA to issue bonds in the amount of
$35,190,000 (“PFA Bonds"} for the purpose of providing funds to finance the acquisition and
construction of the Projects.

On August 1, 2005, PFA issued $35,190,000 of General Obligation Revenue Bonds. The net
proceeds of $33.095 million were used to purchase the 2002 City Bonds from IUDA. The City
has assigned to PFA the City’s right to redeem its Taxable General Obligation Bonds issue of
2002 (“2002 City Bonds”), PFA has transferred and assigned its rights, title and interest in
the 2002 City Bonds to the Trustee as security for PFA Bonds. The 2002 City Bonds are
registered in the name of the Trustee. In addition, PFA has agreed that all revenues received
by it from the ownership of the 2002 City Bonds, to the extent not required to pay debt service
on PFA bonds, shall be remitted to the City and applied to reimburse the City for payments of
debt service made by the City on the 2002 City Bonds.

Bond Purchase Agqreement

On February 1, 2007, IUDA and PFA entered into a Bond Purchase Agreement. In April 2002,
IUDA had previously issued $197.000,000 of Industry Urban-Development Agency Civic-
Recreational-Industrial Redevelopment Project No. 1 2002 Tax Allocation Bonds, Series B
(“2002 IUDA TA Bonds™); IUDA used the proceeds to purchase U.S. government securities to
advance refund the 1992 and 1997 Series Bonds. In order to purchase the 2002 [UDA TA
Bonds and to fund the acquisition and construction of certain municipal improvements, IUDA
issued $169,695,000 2007 Tax Aliocation Bonds on February 1, 2007.

The net proceeds of $166,028,203 were partially used to purchase the 2002 [UDA TA Bonds
from IUDA. IUDA has assigned to PFA the IUDA’s right to redeem its 2002 IUDA TA Bonds.
PFA has then transferred and assigned its rights, title and interest in the 2002 IUDA TA Bonds
to the Trustee as security for the 2007 Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds. The 2002 IUDA TA
Bonds are registered in the name of the Trustee.
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Long-term debt (continued)

Public Facilities Authority, {continued)

|.ease Refunding/City Certificates of Participation

In order to assist the City in financing the construction of various projects, on August 1, 2000,
{UDA and the City entered into a lease agreement for certain properties owned by the City for
a one time site lease payment in the amount of $11,000,000. The IUDA agreed to lease back
these properties to the City. In conjunction with the signing of these lease agreements on
August 30, 2000, the City issued $12,620,000 of Certificates of Participation Series 2000
bonds (*2000 Certificates”) to fund IUDA’s site lease payment. Under the lease agreement,
the certificates represented direct, undivided fractional interests of the owners in lease
payments to be made by the City to IUDA.

The term of both leases ceased on the date in which all the outstanding 2000 Certificates
were paid in full as discussed below.

In March 2010, the City terminated its lease agreement with IUDA and leased the properties
to PFA under a Site Lease Agreement between the City and PFA. As consideration, PFA paid
an upfront rental payment of approximately $7,500,000 to the City for the lease of ceitain
properties. The funds were then used by the City to prepay the 2000 Certificates. These funds
were placed in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the 2000
Certificates. Accordingly, the frust account and the defeased Certificates are not included in
the City's financial statements.

In order to prepay the Site Lease, PFA issued $8,460,000 of 2010 Refunding Lease Revenue
Bonds. In order to secure payments of the bond principal and interest, PFA then leased back
the property to the City in which the City is then obligated to pay semi-annual lease payments
as rental payments for the leased back properties. PFA has assigned its right to receive the
lease payments to U.S. Bank Trust National Association as trustee for the holders of the
Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds.

The term of both leases will cease on the date on which all the outstanding principal and

interest payments of the 2010 Refunding Lease Revenue Bonds are paid in full or a provision
has been made for such payment, but not later than August 1, 2030.
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Long-term debt {continued)

Public Facilities Authaority, {continued)

Lease Refunding/City Certificates of Pariicipation (continued})

PFA will amortize the site lease prepayment over the term of the lease as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Lease Expense
2012 $ 373,144

2013 373,144

2014 373,144

2015 373,144

2016 373,144
Thereafter 5,224,011

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments to be received by PFA and
paid by the City:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Amount
2012 3 937,658
2013 937,658
2014 937,658
2015 937,658
2016 937,658
Thereafter 4,688,288

The annual debt service requirements for these three bonds as of June 30, 2011, are as
follows:

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
2012 5 6,922,432 % 12,815,000 § 19,737,432
2013 6,421,926 13,185,000 19,606,526
2014 5,902,767 13,580,000 19,492,767
2015 5,408,527 13,965,000 18,373,527
2016 4,875,168 14,385,000 19,260,168
2017-2021 14,812,782 80,480,000 95,392,782
2022-2026 3,992,507 7,435,000 11,427,507
2027-2031 2,090,711 9,300,000 11,390,711
2032-2033 201,940 4,340,000 4,541,940

Totals $ 50,728,760 % 160,495,000 § 220,223,760
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Public Facilities Authority, (continued}

The future principal and interest payments PFA will receive from the City and [UDA are as

follows:

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
2012 8,731,240 10,510,000 $ 19,241,240
2013 8,161,352 10,965,000 19,126,352
2014 7,566,409 11,460,000 19,026,409
2016 6,930,611 11,985,000 18,915,611
2016 6,264,733 12,555,000 18,819,733
2017-2021 20,516,511 72,815,000 93,331,511
2022-2026 7,093,888 7,200,000 14,293,888
2027-2031 3,965,597 10,585,000 14,550,597
2032-2033 400,604 5,515,000 5,915,604

Totals 69,630,945 $ 153,590,000 $ 223,220,945
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4, Long-term debt (continued)

Summary of bond fransactions

The following is a summary of bond transactions for the year ended June 30, 207 1:
BALANCE BALANCE AMOUNTS
INTEREST JUNE 30, ADDITIONS JUNE 30, DUE WITHIN
DESCRIPTICN / TERMS RATE 2010 (RETIRED} 2011 ONE YEAR
CITY OF INDUSTRY:
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:
$35,000,000 in 2002 Public Works
Capital Improvement Bonds
$560,000 to $2,865,000 principal
payments due annuaily through §.00% to
2033 7.43% % 32,155,000 $ (540,000} 3 31,815,000 $ 580,000

$27,245,000 In 2004 Public Works
Capital Improvement
Refunding Bonds - Series A
$1,080,000 to $1,870,000 principai
payments due annuaily 3.20% to
through 2028 4.63% 22,345,000 (22,345,000}

$29,015,000 in 2004 Pubiic Works
Capifal Improvement Bonds
Refunding Bonds - Series B
$860,000 to $1,850,000 principal
payment dug annually 3.75% 1o
through 2030 5.00% 24,985,000 (24,965,000)

$37,860,000 in 2009 Public Warks
Capital improvement Bonds
Refunding Bonds - Series A
53,340,000 to $4,545,000 principal
payment due annually 1.72% to
through 2020 3.80% 37,860,000 (3,105,000) 34,755,000 3,340,000

$50,275,000 in 2010 Public Works
Capital Improvement Bonds
Refunding Bonds - Series B
$3,895,000 to $5,640,000 pincipat
payment due annually 3.50% to
through 2020 5.25% 50,975,000 {3.915,000) 47,060,000 3,695,000

$43,340,000 I 2010 Pubfic Works
Capital Improvement
Refunding Bends
$1,550,000 to $3,240,000 principal
payment due annually 0.375% o
through 2030 5.00% - 43,340,000 43,340,000 2,260,000

Total general cbligation bords $ 168,300,000 % 11,530,000} § 156,770,000 § 10,075,000
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Summary of bond transactions (continued)

DESCRIPTION / TERMS

CITY OF INDUSTRY:

SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS
$113,420,000 Sales Tax Revenua
Bonds Issue of 2005
$4,155,000 to $8,485,000 principal
payments due annually
through 2026

$77,540,000 Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds lssue cf 2008
$3,265,000 to $6,085,000
principat payments due annually
through 2027

$45,380,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
issue of 2010 {Taxable) $1,775,000
fo $4,385,000 principal payments due
annually through 2027

Total sales tax revenue bonds

Total City bonds

BALANCE BALANCE AMOUNTS
INTEREST JUNE 30, ADDITIONS JUNE 30, DUE WITHIN
RATE 2010 (RETIRED) 2011 ONE YEAR
5.00% to
5.50% $§ 94590000 $ (3,955,000) $ 90,635,000 & 4,155,000
3.00% to
5.00% 74,580,000 {3.110,000) 71,470,000 3,265,000
3.00% to
8.00% 45,380,000 {1,215,000}) 44,165,000 1,775,000
214,550,000 (8,280,000} 206,270,000 9,195,000

$

382,850,000

{18,810,000) $ 363,040,000 § 19,270,000
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Long-term debt {continued)

Summary of bond transactions (continued)

BALANCE BALANCE
INTEREST JUNE 30, ADDITIONS JUNE 39,
DESCRIPTION/ TERMS RATE 2010 (RETIRED) 2011

AMOUNTS
DUE WITHIN
ONE YEAR

{ndustry Urban-Development
Agency Project No. 1:
$197,000,000 2002 Tax Allocation
Refunding Bonds, due in annual
principal installments of $3,920,000 5.00% to
to 514,915,000 through May 1, 2021 550% $ 131,530,000 $ (9,555,000} $ 121,975,000 §

$78,720,000 2003 Tax Allccation Bonds,
Saries A (Taxable}, due in annual
principal installments of $4,060,000 5.00% o
to $6,660,000 through May 1, 2021 6.00% 56,140,000 (3,875,000) 52,265,000

$68,090,000 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds,
Series B (Taxable), due in annual
principal instaliments of $1,570,000 3.375% to
to $3,180,000 through May 1, 2021 5.00% 25,090,000 {1,470,000) 23,620,000

$83,785,692 2003 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds, due in annual
principal installments of $4,040,000 to
$9,525,000 through December 1, 2020 10.00% 68,045,000 {3,670,000) 64,375,000

571,868,838 2005 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds, due in annual
principal installments of $2,435,000 fo 6.25% to
$5,900,000 through December 1, 2025 6.80% 50,880,000 (2,290,000} 58,590,000

$16,038,957.72 2007 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds, due in annual
principal installments of $708,357 to
$2,115,000 from December 1, 2011
through December 1, 2021 8.00% 16,038,958 16,038,958

$33,673,437.10 2008 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds, due In annual
principat installments of $1,427,000 to
$3,695,000 through December 1, 2023 8.25% 32,488,000 (1,318,000} 31,181,000

9,930,000

4,060,000

1,570,000

4,040,000

2,435,000

708,957

1,427,000

Totals - Project No. 1 $ 390,222,958 § (22,173,000) $ 368,044,958 3

24,170,857

-55 -



CITY OF INDUSTRY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Long-term debt {continued)

Summary of bond transactions {continued)

BALANCE BALANCE AMOUNTS
INTEREST JUNE 30, ADDITIONS JUNE 30, DUE WITHIN
DESCRIPTION / TERMS RATE 2010 (RETIRED) 2011 ONE YEAR
industry Urban-Development

Agency Project No. 2;
$17,270,000 2002 Tax Allocation
Refunding Bands, duein annual
principal instaliments of $710,000 3.80% to
io $1,190,000 through May 1, 2024 475% $ 12,670,000 § (685,000) $ 11,985,000 § 710,000

$39,730,000 2003 Tax Allocation
Ronds (Taxable), due in annual
principal installmenis of $1,595,000 5.10% to
to $3,125,000 through May 1, 2024 6.10% 30,925,000 (1,520,000) 29,405,000 1,595,000

$118,719,962 2003 Subordinate Lien Tax
Aliocation Refunding Bonds, due in annual
principal installments of $4,426,650 to
$10,901,285 through December 1, 2023 10.00% 98,245,857 (4,103,224) 94,142,633 4,426,650

$17,788,304 2005 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds, due in annual
principal installments of $605,000 to 8.251t0
$1,460,000 through December 1, 2025 6.80% 15,080,000 (570,000) 14,510,000 605,000

$31,083,172.70 2008 Subordinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refurding Bonds, due in annual
principal installments of $683,000 to
$6,050,000 through December 1, 2026 5.75% 30,480,000 {645,000} 29,835,000 680,000

$40,000,000 Subordinate Tax Allocation

Refunding Bonds {Taxable), due in annual

principal instaflments of $1,165,000 to

$4,335,000 through December 1, 2026 9.15% 40,000,000 {975,300) 39,025,000 1,165,000
Totals - Project No. 2 $ 227.400,857 § (8,498224) § 218,902,633 § 9,181,650
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Long-term debt (continued}

Summary of bond transactions {continued)

INTEREST
Description / Terms RATE

BALANCE
JUNE 30,
2010

ADDITIONS
(RETIRED)

BALANCE
JUNE 30,
2011

AMOUNTS
DUE WITHIN
ONE YEAR

industry Urban-Development

Agency Project No. 3:

$17,455,000 2002 Tax Aflocation
Refunding Bonds, due in annual principal
instaliments of $715,000 {o $1,200,000 3.80% fa
through May 1, 2024 5.00%

$44,585,000 2003 Tax Allocation Sonds
{Taxable), due in annuai principai
installments of $1,790,000 fo $3,510,000 5,10% to
through May 1, 2024 6.10%

$0,726,529 2003 Subardinate Lien Tax
Allocation Refunding Bonds, due in annual
principal instaliments of $500,000 to
$1,165,000 through December 1, 2018 10.0C%

$5,120,288.60 2008 Suberdinate Lien Tax

Allocation Refunding Bonds, due in arnual

principaf installments of $77,886 to

to §4,267,544 beginning in December 1,

2017 through December 1, 2026 10.00%
Totals - Project No. 3

Total IUDA bonds

$ 12,775,000 §

34,695,000

7,395,000

5,120,289

(690,000) §

(1,705,000}

(545,000)

12,085,000 §

32,990,000

6,850,000

5,120,289

715,000

" 1,790,000

600,000

59,985,289

(2,940,000)

57,045,289

3,105,000

$ 677,609,104 5
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4. Long-term debt (continued)

Summary of bond transactions (continued)

BALANCE BALANCE AMOUNTS
INTEREST JUNE 230, ADDITIONS JUNE 30, DUE WITHIN
Description / Terms RATE 2010 (RETIRED) 2011 ONE YEAR

Industry Public Facilities Authority
General Obligation Revenue Bond
$35,190,000 2005 General Chligaten

Revanue Bond, due in annual principal

installments of $895,000 to $2,200,000 3.50% to

through July 1, 2032 4.88% % 32,760,000 $ (665,000) $ 31,895,000 % 895,000
$169,6085,000 2007 Tax Allocation

Revenue Bond, due in annual principal

installments of $11,245,000 to 3.625% to .

$15,085,000 through May 1, 2021 5.00% 140,585,000 (10,760,000) 129,825,000 11,245,000
$8,460,000 2010 Refunding Lease

Revenue Bond, due in annual

principal installments of $675,000 2.00% to

to $915,000 through August 1, 2020 4.25% 8,460,000 (685,000} 7,775,000 675,000
Total PFA bonds $ 181,805,000 § (12,310,000) $ 168,485,000 $ 12,815,000

The annual debt service requirements for all bonded tong-term debt as of June 30, 2011 are as
follows;

YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30, INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL
2012 $ 66,102,300 $ 68,542,607 $ 134,644,907
2013 64,289,873 71,938,046 136,227,919
2014 62,571,812 75,610,023 138,181,835
2015 60,969,694 79,607,646 140,577,340
2016 59,562,890 83,911,697 143,474,587

2017-2021 289,986,335 491,336,574 781,322,909

2022-2026 229,209,463 247,113,743 476,323,206

2027-2031 14,199,977 48,612,544 62,812,521

2032-2036 602,544 9,855,000 10,457,544
Totals $ 847,494,888 $  1,176,527,880 § _ 2,024,022,768
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Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, is summarized as follows:

Governmental activities:
Bands payablae:
General obligation bonds 3
Tax allocation bonds
Sales Tax Revenue bonds
Reafunding Lease Revenue Bonds
Deferred amounts:
Unamortized premiums/
discounts on refunding
Deferred charges

QOther liabilities:
OPEB contribution payable
Compensated absences

Inter-debt eliminaticns:
City and {UDA bonds owned
by PFA
" 1UDA bonds owned by the City
' Totals $

Portion due or payable after one year

Total

Balance Balance Amounts due
July 01, 2010 Additions Decreases June 30, 2011 within one year
201,060,000 $ 43,340,000 $ (55,735,000} § 188,665,000 10,870,000
818,194,105 {44,376,224) 773,817,881 47,702,607
214,550,000 {8,280,000) 206,270,000 9,195,000
8,460,000 (685,000) 7,775,000 675,000
5,436,925 3,448,666 (1,123,257) 7,762,334 1,165,877
(7,292,880) {1,085,798) 1,625,597 (6,753,081} (1,038,771}
1,240,408,150 45,702,868 (108,573,884} 1,177,537,134 68,658,713
3,966,527 1,387,883 {333,970} 5,020,440
176,607 104,464 {164,266) 116,805 (116,803}
1,244,551,284 47,195,215 (109,072,120) 1,182,674,379 68,541,908
(163,685,000) 10,095,000 (153,590,000) (10,510,000)
(373,784,104) 14,116,224 (359,667,880) {16,087,607)
707,082,180 § 47,195215 § (84,860,896} § 669,416,499 $ 41,944,301
627,472,198
669,416,499

At June 30, 2011, compensated absences totaled $116,805 for governmental funds, which will
principally be paid by the General Fund.
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Redevelopment revolving fund

Pursuant to the cooperative agreement between the City and IUDA, the City established, on
November 13, 1975 in the City Treasury, a special fund known as the “Redevelopment
Revolving Fund”. The money appropriated to the Fund may be expended for the acquisition
of real property in any project area or other expenditures relating to the redevelopment plan.
Money appropriated to the Redevelopment Revolving Fund may be paid to IUDA as an
advance or loan bearing interest of prime plus 2% (5.25% at June 30, 2011) per annum.

Industry Hills Regional Public Park and Recreation Area

On September 30, 2000, a lease was entered into with a third party and the City for the
operation and management of what was formerly known as the Industry Hills Sheraton Resort
and Conference Center. The term of the lease is for 25 years with six five-year options to
extend the lease. The initial annua! rental payment is $300,000 with nothing due for the first
year. Rent will be increased $20,000 per year from the inifial period of the lease. This lease
is accounted for in the general fund of the City.

On June 1, 2002, CRIA assumed control over the operations of the Industry Hills Equestrian
Center and Equestrian Center Trails. During 2004, the name was formally changed to The
Industry Hills Expo Center. CRIA has employed a management company to manage the daily
operations of the Expo Center. The activities of the Expo Center are accounted for in the
enterprise fund in the accompanying proprietary funds financial statements under the heading
“Industry Hills Expo Center”. CRIA shall have available the use of all funds held or accruing in
its Capital Improvement Fund for capital improvements. If any funds are expended for the
maintenance and operation expenses, the City will reimburse CRIA from the general fund.

Defined benefit pension plan

Plan description

The City’s defined benefit pension plan, the Miscellangous Plan of the City of Industry (the
“Plan”), provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. It is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit plan that is part of the Miscellaneous 2.7% at 55 Risk Pool of the California
Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). CalPERS acts as a common investment
and administrative agent for participating public employers within the State of California. State
statutes within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law establish a menu of benefit provisions
as well as other requirements.

All ful-time and certain part-time employees of the City and IUDA are covered in this plan.
The City selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS
and adopts those benefits through local ordinance (or other focal methods). CalPERS issues
a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS’ annual financial
report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento,
California.
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Defined benefit pension plan {continued)

Funding policy

Active plan members in the Plan are required to contribute 8% of their annual covered salary.
The City and {UDA make contributions required of the employees on their behalf. The City
and IUDA are required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary
to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those
adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate of
covered payroll for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were 25.062%, 25.627%
and 25.030% respectively. The contribution requirements of the plan members are
eslablished by State statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be
amended by CalPERS.

Annual pension cost

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City’s annual employer pension cost amounted to
$625,296. The required contribution for the year ended June 30, 2011 was determined as
part of the June 30, 2008 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method
with the contributions determined as a percent of pay.

The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses); (b) projected salary increases ranging from 3.25% to 14.45%, which vary
depending on age, duration of service and type of employment. Both (a} and (b} include an
inflation component of 3.00% and an annual production growth of 0.25%. The actuarial value
of the Plan’s assets was determined using a technique that smoothes the effect of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a three year period depending on the size of
investment gains and losses.

The Plan’'s unfunded actuarial accrued fiability (or excess assets) is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payrolls on a closed basis. The remaining amaortization period as of
June 30, 2008 was 17 years. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does
not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations.

Three-year trend information

Net
Annual Percentage Pension
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Obligation
June 30 Cost Contributed (Overpayment)
2009 607,330 99.58% (3,427)
2010 565,366 97.31% 11,319
2011 625,296 109.72% (41,938)
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Deferred compensation plan

The City and IUDA offer its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City and IUDA employees,
permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plan is
optional. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or an unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred
under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income
attributable to those amounts, property or rights (until paid or made available to the employees
or other beneficiary) are solely the property and rights of the City and IUDA subject only to the
claims of the City and IUDA’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal
to those of a general creditor of the City and IUDA in an amount equal to the fair market value
of the deferred account for each participant.

Investments are managed by the plan’s trustee under one of several investment options, or a
combination thereof. The choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participants.

Commitments and contingencies

Construction project commifments

In December, 1985, the City and IUDA entered into an agreement which calls for [UDA to
finance the acquisition of property and the cost of installation and construction of buildings,
facilities, structures and other improvements with a total estimated cost of $128,071,000. As of
June 30, 2011, various project amounts were revised bringing the estimated cost to
$112,920,000. As of June 30, 2011, $70,285,000 of the improvements have been completed
or funded and the balance is either in the design stage or has not yet been initiated.

The agreement provides that, in consideration of the undertaking by the City to acquire, install
and construct the improvements called for in the agreement, [UDA will pay to the City all of its
tax increment revenue to which it is entitied under Health and Safety Code Section 33670,
that has not been pledged for other valid obligations of IUDA, to the maximum amount equal
to the total of the project costs set forth in the agreement.

The City agreed that it wilt accumulate all payments made by [UDA in trust for the purpose of

carrying out the agreement and shall cause the construction of the facilities as soon as
sufficient funds have been accumulated for that purpose.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY

10. Capital assets
Capital asset activity for the year ending June 30, 2011 is as follows:
Primary government
BALANCE BALANCE
CAPITAL ASSETS July 01, 2010 ADDITIONS RECLASSES  RETIREMENTS  June 30, 2011
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 336,949,309 5 L) 1,011,917 § (12,357,600)% 325,603,628
Construction in progress 31,844,635 23,858,700 {14,145,189) (2,475,689} 39,182 457
Totals 368,893,944 23,858,700 (13,133,272) (14,833,289) 364,786,083
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and imprevements 125,881,267 (661,667) 125,219,600
Equipment 2,030,170 210,622 (74,216) 2,165,876
Furniture and fixtures 3,823,930 112,514 336,027 {(12,943) 4,260,428
Infrastructure 275,994 584 12,796,345 288,790,829
Totals 407,729,051 323,136 13,133,272 {749,526) 420,436,833
Less: accumulated depreciaticn
Personal property 2,490,663 643,765 (74,900) 3,068,528
Real property 104,377,202 0,871,678 {£9,535) 114,189,345
Totals 106,867,865 10,515,443 - (134,435) 117,248,873
Capital assets being depraciated, net 300,852,086 {10,192,307) 13,133,272 {615,091) 303,187 960
Governmenial activities capital assets, net  $ 666,756,030 $ 13,666,293 § - % (15,448,380} 667,874,043
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Capital assets (continued)

Business-type activities

BALANCE BALANCE
CAPITAL ABSETS JULY 1, 2010 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS JUNE 30, 2011
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 6,764,880 $ $ 3 6,764,880
Water rights 441,200 441,200
Source of supply 4,477,162 4,477,162
Consfruction in progress 776,528 2,558 (776,528) 2,558
Totals 12,459,770 2,558 (776,528) 11,685,800
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 49,074,428 837,649 (1,783) 49,910,294
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 827,086 138,097 985,183
Totals 49,901,514 875,746 (1,783) 50,875,477
Less; accumulated depreciation
Personal property 647,744 65,440 713,184
Real property 25,500,979 1,337,353 (1,159) 26,927,173
Totals 26,238,723 1,402,793 {1,159) 27,640,357
Capital assets being depreciated, net 23,662,791 (427,047} {624} 23,235,120
Business-lype activities capital assets, net $ 36,122,561 § {424,489) $ (777,152) % 34,920,920

Depreciation expense was charged to the primary government in the governmental activities-
general government expenses in the amount of $10,515,442 and for business activities in the
amount of $1,402,793. Depreciation expense was charged fo governmental functions as

follows:

General government $
Support services

Community development
Community services

Public safety

Public works

Capital projects

Total depreciation expense  §

766,505
729,323
292,488
513,959
1,247,840
1,071,231
4,994,096

10,515,442
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Capital assets {continued)

Discretely presented component unit

Capital asset activity for the Industry Convalescent Hospital dba El Encanto Healthcare and
Habilitation Center for the year ending June 30, 2011 is as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, JUNE 30,
CAPITAL ASSETS 2010 ADDITICNS RETIREMENTS 2011
El Encanto Healthcare and
Habititation Center
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements $ 1,263,110 3 11,972 3 $ 1275082
Machinery and equipment 1,047,192 19,365 1,066,564
Furniture and fixtures 581,328 2,370 583,698
Totals 2,891,637 33,707 - 2,925,344
Less accumulated depreciation
Bukdings and improvements 876,276 62,518 938,794
Machinery and equipment 820,343 60,652 880,995
Furniture and fixtures 451,574 27,805 479,379
Totals 2,148,193 150,975 - 2,299,168
Net capital assets being depreciated 743,444 {117,268) - 626,176
Component unit's capital assets, nat $ 743,444 3 (117,268) $ - $ 626,176

Transactions with related parties

There was one Council member of the City of Industry that also is an employse of IUDA.

The IUDA rents certain office spaces from the City on a month-to-month basis for $7,258 per
month. The IUDA incurred total lease expenses in the amount of $87,102 for the year ended
June 30, 2011.

A company that provides maintenance services to the City and its component units is a
related party to the Mayor of the City of Industry. For the year ended June 30, 2011, total
expenses amounted to $7,373,440. included in accounts payable is $233,822 that is owed to
this company.

A company that provides auto body and towing services to the City and its compenent units is
a related party to a board member of CRIA. For the year ended June 30, 2011, total expenses
amounted to $104,702. As of June 30, 2011, included in accounts payable is $420 that is
owed to this company.
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Transactions with related parties (continued)

Certain companies that provide maintenance and refuse collection services to the City and its
component units are related to the Mayor of the City through family ownership. The City
incurred total expenses related to these services in the amount of $12,636,938. fncluded in
accounis payable is $1,091,020 that is owed to this company.

CRIA employs a management company to manage the daily operations of the Industry Hills
Expo Center. The management company employs a general manager to manage the
everyday operations of the Expo Center and this individual is related to the Mayor of the City
of Industry.

A company that provides maintenance to CRIA is related to the Mayor of the City of Industry
through family ownership. CRIA incurred total expenses related to these services in the
amount of $124,527 for the year ended June 30, 2011. Included in accounts payable is $1,520
due to this company as of June 30, 2011.

A company that provides maintenance services to the City is owned by a board member with

IUDA. For the year ended June 30, 2011, total expense amounted to $799,818, including in
accounts payable is $59.46 that is owned to this company.

As further discussed in Note 17 — Notes receivables, the IUDA entered into an agresment with
a developer that is related to the Mayor of the City.

Self-insurance plan

The City established a Self-insurance Plan (the “Plan”} to pay for liability claims against the
City and its component units. The Plan is administered by an insurance committee which is
responsibie for approving all claims of $25,000 or less and for making provision to have
sufficient funds available to pay approved claims and legal and investigative expenses. The
insurance committee has vested this responsibility to the City Manager. Potential liability for
claims in excess of $250,000 up to $10,000,000 is covered by excess liability insurance
policies.

As of June 30, 2011, there are $241,344 in pending liability claims and litigation outstanding
against the City and its component units. Based on information presently available, the City
believes that there are substantial defenses to such litigation and disputes and that, in any
event, the ultimate liability, if any, resulting there from will not have a material effect on the
financial position of the City and its component units.

Equity deficit

The Hospital has a net retained deficit, which results from expenses exceeding their revenues.
These losses have been funded through advances as loans from the City.
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Low and moderate income housing

In December of 1992, pursuant to the authority of Government Code 65584.3, IUDA entered
into an agreement with the City and the Housing Authority of the County of Los Angeles
(HACoLA) to provide IUDA funding of low-and moderate-income housing for the benefit of
IUDA's three project areas.

[UDA committed in the agreement to initially pay HACoLA the previously determined
$1,000,000 referred to above and to annually pay to HACoLA in future years the sum of 20%
of lUDA's tax increment revenues (thereby meeting the 20% housing set-aside requirements
of California Redevelopment Law). For the period ended June 30, 2011, IUDA paid
$17,594,197 to HACoLA.

Other Post employment Benefits (OPEB)

The City and IUDA provides post-retirement health and dental care benefits for retirees and
their spouses under a single-employer OPEB plan. The City and IUDA are self-insured and
pays 100% of all health and dental care benefits. Employees who were hired after April 26,
1990 are provided with a different level of coverage per resolution 1478, which provides 100%
coverage after twenty-five years of service. Employees hired prior to April 26, 1990 receive
100% coverage after ten years of service. The Plan does not issue a separate stand alone
financial report.

The City and IUDA have implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions for the year
ending June 30, 2008. Statement No. 45 requires governments to account for other post-
employment benefits, primarily healthcare, on an accrual basis rather than on a pay-as-you-go
basis. The effect is the recognition of an actuarially required contribution as an expense on
the government-wide statement of activities when a future retiree earns their post-employment
benefit rather than when they use their post-employment benefit. To the extent that an entity
does not fund their actuarially required contribution, a post-employment benefit liability is
recognized on the government-wide statement of net assets over time.

{a) Funding Policy
The City and IUDA currently fund the OPEB benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of June
30, 2011, there were eighteen individuals receiving post-retirement benefits from the City. For

the year ended June 30, 2011, the City and its component units paid $333,870 for these
individuals.
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Other post employment benefits (OPEB) (continued)

(b) Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City and component units annuai OPEB expense is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any
unfuhded actuarial liability over a period of thirty years.

ANNUAL REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION {ARC):

AMOUNT
Normal cost $ 787,124
Amortization of initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 685,484
Residual UAAL amortization (107,360)
Total ARC $ 1,365,248
NET OPEB OBLIGATION:

AMOUNT

Balance as of July 1, 2010 $ 3,966,527
ARC 1.365,248
Interest on net pension obligation 198,326
Amortization adjustment (175,690)
Retiree costs paid (333,970)
Balance as of June 30, 2011 $ 5,020,441
(c) Funded Status
The UAAL as of September 1, 2011 amounted to $11,993,791.
Actuarial value of assets 5 -
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL}) $ 11,993,791
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 3 11,993,791
Funded ratio 0%
Covered payroll $ 1,616,586
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 742%

{(d) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The entry age normai actuarial cost method was used to estimate the actuarial accrued
liability and normal cost. The level percentage of payroll method was used to allocate
amortization cost by year over a 30-year amortization period. The actuarial assumptions
included a 3% annual inflation rate, a 5% investment rate of return, projected salary increases
of 3% and annual health care cost inflation of 9%.
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Other post employment benefits (OPEB) (continued)

Actuarial valuations are based on estimates that are likely to change over time. The
relationship of plan asseis and the accrued liability for OPEB benefits over time can be found
on page 82, Projections of benefits are based on the nature of benefits provided under the
plan at the time of the actuarial valuation and the pattern of cost sharing between the
employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations are long-term in nature, and
technigues are used to reduce the short-term volatility of actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial valuation of assets.

Preceding year trend information

Percentage
Annual of Annual Net
Fiscal Year OPEB QOPEB Cost OPEB
June 30 Cost Contributed Obligation
2009 1,719,953 18.86% (2,657,248}
2010 1,779,300 26.42% {3,966,527)
2011 1,387,884 24.06% (5,020,441)

industry Convalescent Hospital

Under statement number 14 issued by the Governmental Standards Accounting Board
(GASB), the Hospital is classified as a component unit and is discretely presented in the
financial statements. During 1992, the City Council passed a resolution stating that periodic
advances made to Industry Convalescent Hospital dba El Encanto Healthcare and habilitation
Center in the past, ag well as currently, will be treated as loans. The note is payable on
demand with simple interest at 6% per annum on the unpaid balance. As of June 30, 2011 the
unpaid rote balance amounted to $20,060,000 and accrued interest amounted to
$17,339,743. As the collectability of this note and accrued interest is uncertain, the loan
amounts have been shown as General Fund expenditures in the financial statements; and the
City will recognize the collections on the note receivabie as revenue as the amounts are
collected. However, in the discrete presentation column the Hospital has recognized these
amounts as long-term debt owed to the City of Industry.

The Hospital leases property from [UDA for $1 a year, which is renewed annually, and at the
time of renewal the lease may be terminated or the lease payment renegotiated by IUDA. The
property has been transferred to the City during 2011, During the fiscal year ended 2011, the
City incurred expenses on behalf of the Hospital totaling $470,538 relating to contract labor,
security and repairs and maintenance and fixed asset additions.

in the past, the Hospital has suffered recurring losses from operations and has a net deficit
that raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern without additional
advances from the City. The Hospital engaged Country Villa Health Services to help in the
management of the Hospital. Management of the Hospital has continued to implement
procedures to increase patient occupancy and contain costs through the use of budgetary
guidelines and overhead reduction.
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Notes receivable

Developer notes receivable - construction loan — related party

In June 2000, IUDA entered into an agreement with a Developer to redevelop certain real
property located within the City, Redevelopment Plan for Project Area No. 1. The Developer
is related to the mayor of the City through family ownership of the company. As part of the
agreement, the Developer purchased the {and from [UDA for $12,800,000. [n order to finance
consfruction costs, IUDA has provided the Developer with construction loans totaling
$14,703,280. The promissory notes for the construction loans and land purchase is secured
by a deed of trust and is payable in equal installments over 20 years including principal and
interest at a rate of 4% per annum and consisted of the following;

PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT AMOUNT DUE NON-CURRENT
JUNE 30, 2011 iN ONE YEAR PRINCIPAL
Due June, 2022, interest
payable in monthly payments
of $78,171 including interest at
4% per annum beginning July 2002 3§ 8,286,421 § 563,533 % 7,722,888
Cue June, 2022, interest
payable in monthly payments
of $66,658 including interest at
4% per annum beginning July 2002 7,065,939 480,532 6,585,407
Due June, 2022, interest
payable in monthly payments
of $22,441 including interest at
4% per annum beginning July 2002 2,378,832 161,777 2,217,055
Totals $ 17,731,192 $ 1,205,842 § 16,525,350

Total interest received on these loans during the year ended June 30, 2011, amounted to
$800,623.

Developer notes receivable — Nissan Auto Mall

In May 2010, IUDA entered into an agreement with a Developer to redevelop certain real
property located within the City of Industry, Redevelopment Flan for Project Area No. 1. In
order to finance the property acquisition, IUDA provided the Developer with a loan of
$4,500,000 which was outstanding as of June 30, 2011. Under the agreement, the developer
will pay interest at $5,000 per month starting on May 1, 2010 through April 1, 2012. On May 1,
2012, the Developer will then make monthly principal and interest payments at an annual rate
of 4% due monthly on the outstanding note balance.
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17. Notes receivable (continued)
Amount Principal
June 30, Amounts due Nan-current
2011 in one year Principal
Due May, 2022,
payable in monthly payments of
$25,069 including interest at
4.00% per annum beginning June 2012 $ 4,500,000 § 9,238 § 4,490,762
As of June 30, 2011, receivables on the balance sheet of the governmental fund statement
consist of the following:
OTHER
GENERAL CAPITAL DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
FUND PROJEGTS  SERVICE FUNDS TOTALS
City of Industry
Accrued interest receivabla 3 34,311 % 3944 § 47,108 $ 946 3 85,308
Sales lax recelvable - LA Gounty 790,258 790,258
Other 5,783,479 21,819 3,306 5,808,604
Industry Urban-Development Agency
Developer notes receivable - consiruction loan - related party 17,731,192 17,731,192
Developer notes receivable - Nissan 4,500,000 4,500,000
Acorued interest receivable 137,048 137.048
Property tax receivable 10,218,346 10,218,346
Totals $ 6608048 § 22,372,184 § 10,287,273 § 4,252 § 39,271,757
Receivables - current ] 20,444,257
Raceivahlas - non current 16,827,500

18.

s __sanys

Rental property

The City and its component units rent land, buildings and housing to others through non-
cancelable rental agreements. Rental income for the year ended June 30, 2011 amounted to
$8,076,539. Future minimum rental incoms payments based on terms in effect at June 30,
2011 are as follows:
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Rental property (continued)

YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30 AMOUNT
2012 $ 8,459,155
2013 8,479,786
2014 8,646,255
2015 8,721,506
2016 8,388,917
2017-2021 40,077,520
2022-2026 43,244,931
2027-2031 6,500,000

On April 28, 2005, IUDA entered into an agreement with a private company to lease land
owned by IUDA to the Company for the purpose of having the land developed and operated
by the Company. Under the agreement, which commences upon the completion of the first
building constructed, [UDA is required to perform substantial public improvements surrounding
the project area. The term of the agreement continues for 65 years from the commencement
date. The agreement allows for 1UDA and the Company to split revenues generated by rents
of the buildings after deductions for any loan payments or costs associated with the
ownership, operation, financing, maintenance and leasing of the various buildings.

In the event that rental income on the buildings is insufficient to repay any loans outstanding
related to any financing of such building projects, and operation and maintenance of the
various buildings, the IUDA is required to contribute fifty percent for any shortfall as a capital
contribution if the Company issues a demand for additional capital. Such payments if made by
IUDA on the projects would be subject to return by the Company with interest at the prime rate
plus three percent provided that future rents generate revenue for I[UDA. During the year
ended June 30, 2011, IUDA earned and received $3,289,526 of rental income from the
Company.

Revenue pass through

Based upon the provisions of Health and Safety Code Sections 33607.5 and 33607.7,
redevelopment agencies with redevelopment plans modified or adopted after January 1, 1994
are subject to the regulations of the provision. |UDA is subject to the requirements of these
subsections. IUDA will need to make payments to the County of Los Angeles, the City and
Other City Taxing Entities ("OCTE’s"} based on a calculation provided by the County of Los
Angeles.

The calcutation for the pass through amount was based on the cash amount of tax increment,
while the financial statements are presented on the accrual basis. The amount of the pass
through has been deducted from the tax revenue line item on the financial statements. The
following schedule shows the amount of pass through deducted:
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Revenue pass through {continued)

COUNTY CITY QCTE's TOTAL
Project 1 $ 912,258 $ 1,903,379 § 890,000 $ 3,705,637
Project 2 453,012 838,972 449,653 1,741,637
Project 3 133,740 210,851 100,886 445,577

Total $ 1,499,010 $ 2,953302 $_ 1440,539 $ 5,892,851

Pass through payments from IUDA to the City have been eliminated in the Statement of
Activities.

Lease commitments

The City leases office space and other equipment and storage under operating lease
agreements from third parties. Minimum lease commitments on all non-cancelable operating
leases as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

LEASED FROM THIRD

YEAR ENDING PARTIES
2012 5 99,756
2013 38,726
2014 33,763
2015 27,333
2016 4,446

2017-2021 22,228
2022-2026 22,228
2027-2031 22,228

School district agreement

In 1971, IUDA entered into an agreement with certain school districts, which serve the City,
whereby IUDA is to pay the schoo! districts out of its tax revenues up to $436,000 per year
plus additional sums when the assessed value of taxed property in the included area exceeds
$120,000,000 so that the school districts would not lose tax revenues as a result of the
redevelopment plan.

Subsequent to the execution of the agreement, the State of California adopted legislation that
provided for reimbursement by the State to school districts for tax revenues lost as a result of
redevelopment. IUDA, therefore, is no longer making payments under the agreement, and no
payments have been made to the school districts since July 1, 1973.

The agreement does, however, remain in effect and future legislation could cause IUDA to be
required to resume such payments. No liability for any such future payments is reflected on
the accompanying financial statements.
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Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds {SERAF)

ABX4-26 Chapter 21, statutes of 2009, requires redevelopment agencies to shift $1.7 billion in
property tax revenues to K-12 schools during the 2009-10 fiscal year via the Supplemental
Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds (the “SERAF”) that the Chapter created in each
county. The California Department of Finance is required to determine the amount each
redevelopment agency shall transfer to the SERAF, and is further required to notify each
redevelopment agency and legislative body of those amounts. 1UDA can use any legally
available funds to make the SERAF payment.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, IUDA made the SERAF payment of $6,810,449.

Budgetary expenditures in excess of appropriations

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the General Fund experienced budgetary
expenditures that were in excess of appropriations related to general increase of expenditures
in all departments.

Recent Changes in Legislation Affecting California Redevelopment Agencies

On December 29, 2011, the Supreme Court of the State of California upheld the enforceability
of legislation that provides for the dissolution of California redevelopment agencies, but struck
down the Assembly Bill X1 27 which would have provided a means for redevelopment
agencies to continue to exist and operate by means of a Voluntary Alternative Redevelopment
Program. 'Assembly Bill X1 26 signed into law as part of the State’s budget package on June
29, 2011, requires each California redevelopment agency to suspend nearly all activities
except to implement existing contracts, meet already-incurred obligations, preserve its assets,
prepare for the impending dissolution of the agency, and transfer all of its assets to a
successor agency that is govemed by an oversight board representing the various taxing
jurisdictions in the community.

Assembly Bill X1 26 also required each agency to adopt an Enforceable Obligation Payment
Schedule and draft a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule prior to September 30, 2011.
Enforceable obligations include bonds, loans and payments required by the federal or State
government; legally enforceable payments required in connection with agency employees
such as pension payments and unemployment payments, judgments or settiements; legally
binding and enforceable agreements or coniracts; and contracts or ag reements necessary for
the continued administration or operation of the agency that are permitted for purposes set
forth in Assembly Bill X1 26. Only the amount of tax revenues necessary to fund the payments
reflected on the Enforceable Obligation Payment Schedule will be allocated to the successor
agencies.

Assembly Bill X1 26 directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the
propriety of any transfers of assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies
that occurred after January 1, 2011. If the public body that received such transfers is not
contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or encumbrance of those assets,
the State Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to the public
body designated as the successor agency as defined in Assembly Bill X1 26.
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Recent Changes in__Legislation Affecting California Redevelopment Agencies

{continued)

The full impact of this most recent development and its impact on other funds of the City are
not known at this time. The financial statements do not reflect any adjustments that might
result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Prior Period Adjustment

Net assets at the beginning of 2011 have been adjusted to comrect an error. in the year ended
June 30, 2011, it was noted that several land parcels had been disposed of in previous years
but were not removed from the Agency's capital asset listing. Capital assets with a cost of
$9,499,188 have been removed from the Statement of Net Assets and presented as a prior
period adjustment on the Statement of Activities.
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Budgetary information

The City Council adopts an annual budget, submitted by the City Manager prior to June 30th.
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. All annual
appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year. The City Council has the legal authority to
amend the budget at any time during the fiscal year. There was one amendment to the budget
during the fiscal year. The City Manager has the authority to make adjustments to the
operating budget within a fund. Transfers of operating budgets between funds or from
appropriated reserve accounts, use of unappropriated fund balances, cancellation of
appropriation and all changes in capital improvement project budgets require the approval of
the City Council.

The annual budget is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles and is adopted for all governmental type funds.

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the appropriated budget approved by the City Council. The level of budgetary control (that is,
the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) for the
operating budget is at the fund level.

Expenditures in excess of appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2011, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following
departments of the general fund:

General administration 3 206,575
Community development 157,061
Community services 286,095
Public safety 440,400
Support services 339,556
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VARIANCE
ORIGINAL REVISED FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
TAXES
Sales tax $ 26,930,000 § 27,349,909 % 27,367,435 % 17,526
Franchise 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,369,547 {30,453)
Documentary transfer tax 80,000 100,000 95,124 (4,876)
Transient occupancy tax 840,000 700,000 746,897 46,897
Property tax 1,300,000 2,000,000 1,470,037 {529,963)
Traffic congestion relief 5,000 5,000 (5,000}
PSAF/COPS 106,000 105,500 106,504 1,004
Total taxes 30,461,000 31,660,409 31,155,544 (504,865)
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Salvage fees and ficenses 218,000 218,000 213,895 (4,105)
Building permits 700,000 600,000 577,142 (22,858)
Inspection fees and plans 142,000 200,000 168,873 (31,127
Refuse collection 1,700,000 1,400,000 1,258,438 {141,561)
Motor vehicles license fees 43,000 60,000 64,373 4,373
Total licenses and permits 2,803.000 2,478,000 2,282,722 {195,278}
FINES AND FORFEITURES
Vehicle impound and storage fees 32,000 28,000 30,150 4,150
Bin impound fees 4,000 4,000 4,520 520
Cede violation citations 1,000 500 1,600 1,100
Fines and forfeifures 250,000 300,000 300.859 859
Parking citations 85,000 97,178 12,178
Total Fines & Forfeltures 287,000 415,500 434,307 18,807
REVENUE FROM USE OF
MONEY AND PROPERTY
Interest income 8,500,000 8,500,000 13,897,749 5,387,749
Rental income 685,000 785,000 2,800,805 2,015,805
Other income {2,233,000) 377,000 760,054 383,054
Total revenue from use
of maney and property 6,952,000 9,662,000 17,458,608 7,796,608
OTHER SOURCES
Sale of Property 5,300,000 3,138,000 (3,138,000)
Total general fund
revenues $ 45,803,000 $ 47,353,909 % 51,331,181 § 3.977,272
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LEGISLATIVE
City council:
Salaries
Services and supplies:
Office supplies
Printing and photographs
Travel and meetings
Vehicle expenses
Telephone
Miscellaneous
Totals - City counci

City clerk:

Salaries

Services and supplies:
Ofice supplies
Printing and photographs
Travel and meetings
Legal advertising and prinfing
Election expanse
Dues and subscriptions
Tefephone
Miscellaneous

Totals- City clerk
Totals - Legislative

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
City attorney:
Services and supplies:
Professicnal services
Travel and meetings
Legal
Totals - City attorney

CITY OF INDUSTRY
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL REVISED FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
116,067 § 115,886 §$ 115,886
4,000 4,000 3,755 245
100 100 100
1,600 1,600 3,798 (2,198)
800 250 252 @)
1,200 1,140 1,452 {312)
200 200 25 175
123,067 123,176 125,158 {1,992)
126,072 136,158 136,158
300 200 81 119
42 (42)
300 1,100 1,188 (88)
17,000 19,000 21,210 (2,210)
30,000 30,000 2,987 27,013
7,000 1,200 4,544 (3,344)
1,100 1,000 057 43
350 25 (25)
182,122 188,658 167,192 21466
306,089 311,834 292,360 19,474
500,000 400,000 277,831 {(177,831)
400
1,660,000 1,400,000 1,348,508 51,492
2,160,400_ $ 1,500,000 § 1,626,339 (126,339)
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

VARIANCE
ORIGIMNAL REVISED FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION, continued
City manager:
Salaries 5 197,326 § 220,543 § 220,403 % 140
Services and supplies:
Professicnal services 348,000 400,000 399,348 652
Office supplies 300 300 215 85
Repairs and equipment maintenance 100
Printing and photographs 100
Travel and meetings 20,000 10,000 10,300 {300)
Vehicle expense 8,000 8,000 5,807 2,193
Dues and subscriptions 64,000 84,000 51,426 2,674
Telephona 2,000 1,400 1,867 (467}
Miscellaneous 1,700 1,700 1,965 (265)
Legal 51,000 43,800 94,050 {50,259)
Legisiative expanses 150,000 123,000 160,225 (37,225)
Capital outlay 7.200 7,200 '
Totals - City manager 842,526 879,943 962,808 {82,863)
Human resources:
Salaries 100,285 77,924 77,926 (2)
Services and supplies:
Office supplies 60 (69)
Printing and photographs 200 150 171 (21)
Dues and subscriptions 3,000 1,600 1,803 (303)
Repairs and maintenance 720 3Nz 312
Telephone 500 500 4387 13
Totals - Human Resources 104,705 80,388 80,752 (373)
Totals - General Administration 3,107,631 2,460,329 2,869,904 (209,575)
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CITY OF INDUSTRY

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Engineering:
Salaries
Sepvices and supplies:
Professional services
Printing and photographs
General engineering
Pianning, survey and design
Miscellaneous anginearing
Totals - Enginesring

Planning:

Salartes

Services and supplies:
Offices supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Printing and phetographs
Travet and mestings
Legal advertising/printing
Telephone
Miscellaneous
Filing fees
Professional services

Totals- Planning
Totals - Gemmunity Development

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Community promotion:
Services and supplies:
Communily promotion
Telephone
Totals - Cammunity promotion

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL REVISED FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
62,444 § 72,345 § 72,264 81
30,000 30,00C 37,091 {7,091
11,000 5,000 4,292 708
500,000 250,000 260,464 (10,464)
16,000
38,500 36,106 45,939 (9,833)
657,044 393,451 420,050 (26,599)
128,137 130,754 130,754
200 100 45 56
1,500 1,200 1,200
1,000 200 200
2,000 1,200 873 527
600 450 533 (83)
500 140 55 85
45,000 37,370 33,199 4,171
300,000 460,000 596,617 (136,617)
478,937 531414 761,576 {130.462)
1,136,581 1,024,865 1,181,926 (157,061)
1,600,000 1,762,000 1,890,819 (128,819
700 750 858 {108)
1600,700 § 1,762,750 _§ 1,801,677 {128,927
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL REVISED FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
COMMUNITY SERVICES, continued
Ei Encanto Hospital:
Services and supplies
Profassional fees 3 400 § $ 280 $ (280)
Repairs and maintenance 41,000 31,000 26,674 4,326
Property maintenance 260,000 260,000 257,248 2,754
Security 41,029 {41,029)
Capital outlay 14,068 (14,088)
Totals - El Encanto Hospital 301,460 291,000 339,297 (48,297)
Workman Temple Homestead Museum:
Services and supplies:
Professional services 10,000 1,778 (1,778)
Museum agreament 922 000 902,000 601,643 357
Utilitios 3,000 10,000 5273 4,727
Praperty maintenance 525,000 671,000 799,770 (128,770)
General enginaering 2,000 1,800 1,800
Janitoria} services 13,000 12,000 11,069 931
Miscellaneous 6,800 107,800 98,189 8,611
Pond maintenance 9,500 8,500 2,600 3,900
Capital outlay ) 30,000 29,649 351
Totals - Workman Temple Museum 1,491,300 1,741,100 1,849,971 (108,871)
Tatals - Gommunily Services 3,393,400 3,794,850 4,080,945 {286,095)
PUBLIC SAFETY
Law enforcement:
Services and supplies:
Printing and phetography 200 1,507 {1,507}
Professional services 400 400 1,143 (743)
Vehicle expenses 1,500
Telephone 6,000 5,400 5,712 (312}
Miscellansous 7,257 (7,267)
General iaw and trafflc enforcemant 6,100,000 5,100,000 5,435,801 (335,801)
Other iaw enforcement 5,000 11,000 7,000 4,000
Animail confrol 40,000 55,000 47,531 7,469
Security 200,000 200,000 262,154 (62,154)
Bullding lease and storage payments 67,000 66,600 350
Capital outlay 44,445 {44.445)
Totals - Public Safely $ 6,363,100 S 5,438,800 % 5,873,200 % (440,400}

-81-



CITY OF INDUSTRY
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL REVISED FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
PUBLIC WORKS
Community facilifies and ground
Services and supplies:
Professional services $ 16,500 § 16,500 § 21535 § (5,035}
Repalrs and maintenance 40,000 2,000 157,254 (155,264}
Equipment rentals 4,000
Vehicle expenses 60,000 60,000 60,867 (867)
Telephone 5,000 5,500 5,674 (174}
Building lease 95,000 96,000 95,743 {743}
Miscellanecus 3,000 4,700 9,949 (5,249)
Graffiti removal 60,000 52,000 47,300 4,700
Utilities 699,000 764,000 684,755 79,245
Swimming facility 184,281 {184,281} 184,281
Preperly maintanancs 7,818,000 7,146,000 7,199,540 (53,549)
Printing and photography 100
Saecurity 762,000 732,000 693,265 38,735
Capitat outlay 52,000 195,000 333,651 (138,651}
Totals - Community facilities 9,868,881 9,072,700 9,125,261 (52,561)
Pubtic Warks Adminstration:
Salaries 70,170 80,456 80,375 Y
Services and supplies:
Dues and subseriptions 2,500 1,000 800 100
Strests and roads 5,435,000 6,856,000 6,487,100 368,900
Miscellaneous 130,000 230,000 242 438 (12.,438)
Totals - Public works 5,637,670 7,167,456 6,810,813 356,643
Totals - Public Works 15,506,551 16,240,156 15,936,074 304,082
SUPPORT SERVICES
Centrat services:
Salaries 100,536 112,000 110,623 1,377
Services and supplies:
Professional services 318,000 418,000 375177 42,823
Office supplies 45,000 45,000 42,927 2,073
Repairs and maintenance 150,000 160,000 183,566 (23,566)
Equipment rentals 41,000 36,000 20,215 6,785
Printing and photographs 2,000 1.000 1,421 {42%)
Travel and meetings 7,000 4,000 4,943 (943)
Vehicle expenses 100,000 80,000 120,038 (40,038)
Dues and subscription 3,000 2,500 2,721 (221)
Computer services . 6,100 6,100 10,550 (4,450)
Building maintenance 240,000 330.000 295,462 34,538
Telephone 24,000 26,000 20,502 5,498
Utilities 50,000 43,000 37,531 5,469
Building lease paymsnts 37,200 37,200 38,250 {1,050)
Miscellaneous 5,000 11,000 12,743 {1,743)
Refuse disposal - residents 26,000 16,000 18,000
Capital outlay 50,000 113,000 128,597 {15,597)
Totals - Central services 3 1,214,836 % 1,440,800 % 1,430,266 % 10,534
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL REVISED FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
SUPPORT SERVICES, continued
City treasurer:
Salaries 8 125,343 § 150,343 § 149,406 $ 937
Services and supplies:
Office supplies 300 100 80 20
Repairs and maintenance 200 140 {140)
Travel and mestings 3,000
Vehicle expenses 100
Miscellaneous 1,300 1,300 1,043 257
Totals - Gity treasurer 130,243 151,743 150,669 1,074
Finance department:
Salaries 123,600 31,827 31,827
Services and supplies:
Office supplies 1,000 500 272 228
Repairs and maintenance 21,800 7.800 22,510 {14,710}
Equipment Rental/i ease 18,000 8,000 7,587 413
Printing and photagraphs 601 {601)
Travel and meetings 4,000 3,504 496
Vehicle expense 100
Dues and subscripiicns 1,000 25 373 (348)
Telepheone 3,600 2,600 2,082 518
Misceflaneous 500 500 426 74
Accounting 204,000 304,000 286,665 17,335
Profassional services 5,000 388 (388)
Audit Services 105,000 95,000 108,600 (13,600)
Contract Labor 505,000 505,000 469,317 35,683
Capital outlay 225,000 175,000 169,863 5,137
Totals - Finance department 1,213,600 1,134,252 1,104,015 30,237
Non-departmental:
Services and supplies:
Insurance and bonds 500,000 510,000 510,685 (689)
Employees insurance 130,000 141,500 28,607 52,803
Group and medical insurance 1,300,000 1,000,000 1,064,637 (64,637)
PERS 414,000 314,000 362,071 (48,071
Miscellaneous 47,000 40,000 50,676 (10,678)
Tuition reimbursement 12,000 6,119 (6,119)
Taxes and assessmenis 254,000 220,000 218,706 1,294
Bad debt expenses 25,000
Payrolil taxes 21,300 21,800 28,586 (6,786)
Professional services 131,000 144,900 121,334 23,566
Insurance claims 372,800 (218,751} 591,551
Parking citation 43,000 42,412 588
Lease obligation 914,319 (914,319)
Total Non-departmenilal 2,834,300 2,808,000 3,189,401 (381,401)
Totals - Support Services 5,302 979 5,534,795 5,874,351 {339,556)
Capital projects 125,000 25,000 20,497 4,503
Total expenditures 5 35,321,631 % 34,830,629 & 35,035257 § {1,104,628)
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CITY OF INDUSTRY

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

RETIREMENT PLAN
JUNE 30, 2011

The table below displays a short history of the Eniry Age Normal Accrued Liability, the Acfuarial Value of Assets, the
Unfunded Liability or {Excess Assets). Fund Status {i.e., the ratio of the Actuariai Value of Assets to Entry Age Normal
Accrued Liability), the estimated annual covered payrcil and the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) as a

percentage of the covered payroil,

Unfunded
Entry Age Actuarial Liabitity/ Annual
Normal Accrued Value of {Excess Funded Covered
Valuation Liability Assets Assets}) Status Payroll
Date (a} () {a){b} {b){=) (c)
6/30/2008 $ 1,823,366,479 1,620,548,799 § 293,817,680 83.9% % 414,588,614
78.2% % 440,071,499

6/30/2009 $ 2,140,438,884
6/30/2010 $ 2,297,871,345

A < &

1,674,260,302 § 466,178,592
1,815,671,616 § 482,199,729

-gd-

79.0% $ 434,023,381

UAAL as
a % of
Payroil
{a)x(b)ifc

70.9%
105.9%
111.1%




CITY OF INDUSTRY
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OPEB PLAN
JUNE 30, 2011

The table below dispiays a short history of the Actuarial Accrued Liability, the Actuarial Value of Assets, and the
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. Fund ratio (i.e., the ratio of the Actuarial Value of Assets to Actuarial Accrued
Liability}, the estimated annual covered payroll and the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) as a percentage
of the covered payroll.

Unfunded
Actuariaf Actuarial
Accrued Actuarial Accrued Annual UAAL as
Actuarial Liability Value of Liahility Funded Coverad a % cf
Valuation {AAL) Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) {b} (a-b) {by(a) {c) [(ax-(b))ic
9/1/2008 § 14,162,839 § - $ 14,162,839 0.0% % 2,006,622 706%
g/1/201 11,993,761 - 11,993,791 0.0%

1,616,586 742%
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Other Supplementary Information
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INDUSTRY PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

CITY OF INDUSTRY TOTALS
INDUSTRY PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION JUNE 30,
ASSETS WATER ELECTRIC 2011
Current assets:
Cash $ 147,511 § 202,268 % 349,779
Investments 3,706,222 3,706,222
Accounts receivable 357,450 357,450
Other receivables 122,975 3,484 126,459
Inventory of materials and supplies, at cost 10,000 10,000
Noncurrent assets: ’
Capital assets:
Land 35,500 35,500
Water rights 441,200 441,200
Source of supply 441,687 4,035,475 4,477,162
Buildings and improvements 22,464,044 22,464,044
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 134,193 134,193
Less accumulated depreciation (12,949,658) (761,951) (13,711,609)
Capital assets, net 10,566,966 3,273,524 13,840,490
Total assets 10,847,452 7,542,948 18,390,400
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 23,957 173,138 197,095
Total lfabilities 23,957 173,138 197,095
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 10,566,966 3,273,524 13,840,490
Unrestricted 256,529 4,006,286 4,352,815
Total net assets $ 10,823,495 $ 7,369,810 $ 18,193,305
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CITY OF INDUSTRY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - INDUSTRY PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for sales and services:
Water sales and service
Electric sales
Recreational services and other income
Total operating revernues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased electricity
General administration
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assetls
Total operating expenses

(LOSS) INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
NON-OPERATING REVENUE - INTEREST INCOME
(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS
Transfers in from other government funds
Transfers out to other governmental funds
Total transfers In (Out)

Change [n net assets

Total net assets - beginning of year
Total net assets - end of year

-95-
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CITY OF INDUSTRY TOTALS
INDUSTRY PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION JUNE 30,
WATER ELECTRIC 2011
227,947 $ $ 227,947
3,490,641 3,490,641
45,269 45,269
273,216 3,490,641 3,763,857
2,050,099 2,050,099
293,764 520,622 814,386
491,972 80,628 572,600
624 624
786,360 2,651,349 3,437,709
(513,144) 839,292 326,148
32 15,347 15,379
(513,112) 854,639 341,527
233,670 9,152 242,322
(406,701) (689,175) (1,095,876)
(173,031) (680,023) (853,054)
(686,143) 174,616 (511,527)
11,509,638 7,195,194 18,704,832
10,823,495 $ 7,369,810 $ 18,193,305




CITY OF INDUSTRY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INDUSTRY PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

PROPRIETARY FLUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CITY OF INDUSTRY TOTALS
INDUSTRY PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION JUNE 30,
WATER ELECTRIC 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash inflows:
Receipts from customers and users $ 515,503 § 3,387,112 % 3,902,615
Total cash inflows from operating activities 515,503 3,387,112 3,902,615
Cash outflows: .
Payments to suppliers and employees 300,072 2,485,714 2,774,786
Total cash outflows from operating activities 309,072 2,465,714 2,774,786
Net cash provided by operating acfivities 206,431 921,398 1,127,829
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investmeants {86,670} (551.258) (637,228)
Interest income 32 15,347 15,379
Net cash provided by (used in) Investing activities (86,638) (635,911} (622,549)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds (173,037} (680,023) (853,054)
Net cash used in non-capital financing activities {(173,031) {680,023} (853,054)
Net decrease in cash {63,238) (294,536) (347,774)
Cash, July 1, 2010 200,749 496,804 697,653
Cash, June 30, 2011 $ 147,511 % 202,268 $ 349,779

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH USED IN QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating (loss) income § (513,144) § 839,202 § 326,148
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss} income
to net cash provided by operating activitias:

Depreciation 491,972 80,628 572,600

Capital projects abandoned 624 624
{Increase) decrease in assets

Accaunts receivable 66 {100,937) (100,871}

Other receivable 242,221 (2,592} 239,629
increase (decrease) in liabilities

Accounts payable (15,308) 105,007 89,699

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities § 206,431 % 921,398 % 1,127,829
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